          1

          2  CITY COUNCIL

          3

             CITY OF NEW YORK

          4

             -------------------------------x

          5

             THE TRANSCRIPT OF THE MINUTES

          6

                       of the

          7

             COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          8

          9  -------------------------------x

         10

                            October 7, 2005

         11                 Start:  10:00 a.m.

                            Recess: 1:12 p.m.

         12

                            City Hall

         13                 Council Chambers

                            New York, New York

         14

         15       B E F O R E:

         16              EVA MOSKOWITZ

                                           Chairperson,

         17

         18              COUNCIL MEMBERS:   Leroy Comrie

                                            Bill DeBlasio

         19                                 Helen Foster

                                            Robert Jackson

         20                                 Oliver Koppell

                                            John Liu

         21                                 Domenic Recchia

                                            Andrew Lanza

         22                                 James Oddo

         23

         24       LEGAL-EASE COURT REPORTING SERVICES, INC.

                         17 Battery Place -  Suite 1308

         25              New York, New York 10004

                              (800) 756-3410

                                                            2

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S

          3

             Carmen Farina

          4  Deputy Chancellor for Teaching and Learning

             NYC Department of Education

          5

             Linda Wernikoff

          6  Deputy Superintendent for Special Education

             Initiatives

          7  NYC Department of Education

          8  Michael Best, Esquire

             General Counsel

          9  NYC Department of Education

         10  Jill Levy

             President

         11  Council of School Supervisors and Administrators

         12  Ernie Logan

         13  Carmen Alvarez

             Vice President for Special Education

         14  United Federation of Teachers

         15  Helen O'Reilly

             Advocates for Children of New York

         16

             Linda V. Scott

         17  Parent, PS 811K

         18  Yvonne Dixon Cook

             PTA President

         19  PS 811K

         20  Jacob Morris

             Executive Director

         21  Society for Equitable Excellence

         22  Carmen Santana

         23

         24

         25

                                                            3

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I am Eva

          3  Moskowitz, the Chair of this Education Committee,

          4  and I am going to bring this Committee to order.

          5                 I know that I will be joined by many

          6  colleagues. There are a number of simultaneous

          7  meetings going on in this building and across the

          8  street, so my colleagues will be with us shortly.

          9                 Two and a half years ago, I held a

         10  hearing on Special Education, and this was just at

         11  the time that the Mayor and the Chancellor were

         12  announcing the Children's First reforms. There were

         13  a lot of rumors at that time that Special Ed was

         14  going to undergo fundamental reform, and when Linda

         15  Wernikoff, who I am glad to see is here with us

         16  today, testified she outlined those proposed

         17  changes. They were numerous. I think we produced the

         18  first organizational chart in working with the

         19  Department on those changes.

         20                 We got a new set of acronyms, races,

         21  IS's, IEP teachers, AIS, PPTs, I can't even keep

         22  track of them all. It was hard to follow the

         23  structure, but there seemed to be an important

         24  premise that the emphasis had to be on teaching and

         25  learning and being in the classroom.
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          2                 A few months later the Committee

          3  issued a report entitled  Too Little Too Late, and

          4  as Chair of the Committee, I was sympathetic to the

          5  goals that the Chancellor had in terms of the

          6  problems with special ed. There were no shortage of

          7  problems, and it's not as if the existing system was

          8  working well, and I certainly commended him at the

          9  time and still commend him and now Linda and now, of

         10  course, Carmen, for again that emphasis on teaching

         11  and learning.

         12                 The organizational structure, given a

         13  huge bureaucracy, seemed to make sense. The notion

         14  of having principals being accountable for the

         15  special ed going on in their building certainly made

         16  sense.

         17                 I remember in particular being

         18  impressed that finally special ed teachers were

         19  going to get trained in Orton Gillingham, something

         20  used in the private schools special ed world,

         21  finally public education was catching up to sort of,

         22  I don't know, maybe 20 years later is an

         23  exaggeration, but ten years later, certainly the

         24  Wilson Program is highly regarded, the Attuned,

         25  schools Attuned Program, the emphasis is on
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          2  professional development, all that seemed good. But

          3  the report that this Committee issued still said

          4  that despite those positive changes, there were two

          5  clear problems that the changes proposed by the

          6  Mayor at the time we wrote the report, those changes

          7  hadn't been implemented.

          8                 We identified two problems. There

          9  were many problems, but we tried to encapsulate into

         10  two main problems. First, the kids were not

         11  identified early enough who had special needs. And,

         12  second, the support was too inadequate. Even when

         13  they were finally identifies, whether that was

         14  because of the lack of timeliness of related

         15  services, or because the pull-out model wasn't

         16  working, the kids who needed the most support were

         17  not getting it.

         18                 Now 30 months have passed since the

         19  Committee issued that report, despite my sincere

         20  belief that the Department has talented and very

         21  committed people, and I have had the pleasure now of

         22  working with Linda I think for my entire six years

         23  under many new initiatives and so forth, and Linda

         24  is always incredibly responsive, and I think has a

         25  very commendable passion for special ed students.
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          2  The line of the Department tends to be that

          3  everything is wonderful and it's going up and up and

          4  up, and things are getting better and better and

          5  better. Others are not so sure, including,

          6  obviously, this Committee. As part of the ongoing

          7  Jose Pi (phonetic) litigation, that has been

          8  dragging on since 1979. By the way, Jose Pi would

          9  have been 41 years old at this point.

         10                 The Department hired, as part of that

         11  negotiation, the Department hired a team of

         12  researchers from Harvard University who produced a

         13  100-page report that dissects special education in

         14  the City, it's called the Hehir Report, and you'll

         15  hear a lot about it today.

         16                 The report says that many of the

         17  Chancellor's reforms were good ideas. I think from a

         18  conceptual point of view the report endorses the

         19  notion that eliminating the educational evaluators

         20  and focusing on the classroom is a good idea.

         21                 The report also says that the

         22  achievement levels for students, special ed

         23  students, are rising, at least as measured by the

         24  most recent test, the fourth and eighth grade exams,

         25  and it certainly confirms what I have found to be
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          2  the case, that upper management is deeply committed

          3  and dedicated to special ed and I think that

          4  reflects very highly on you, Linda and your staff.

          5  I'm not sure in all districts you have that level of

          6  dedication.

          7                 And it says, just to quote, the

          8  degree to which positive change is occurring in many

          9  of the regions in the schools is commendable.

         10                 But it also has a long, long, long

         11  list of criticisms and essentially says we are

         12  extremely far from where we need to be, and that the

         13  level of dysfunction in the provision of special ed

         14  is very high.

         15                 We have prepared at the Committee a

         16  number of handouts to try and summarize those

         17  findings and they're in a number of different areas.

         18                 There is a fact sheet regarding

         19  special ed and then there are a number of pages

         20  entitled Conflicting Views of Special Education in

         21  New York City, and summarizes some of the key points

         22  of the Hehir Report.

         23                 There are many criticisms of the

         24  delivery of special ed and I'm not going to go over

         25  them in too much detail right now, but to me, one of
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          2  the most interesting findings was that even if the

          3  Department of Education got the implementation done

          4  better, in other words, even if you found more

          5  occupational therapists and speech, physical

          6  therapists, even if you identified kids earlier,

          7  even if you fix the dreadful impartial hearing

          8  process, you would still be building your service as

          9  it were on a house of cards. And as I understand the

         10  report, the house of cards is the medical model,

         11  what the Hehir Report refers to as the medical model

         12  of disability, and I think it's very important to

         13  hear from the Department whether you agree with that

         14  very profound criticism because if you don't agree,

         15  then we can have a debate about that. But what the

         16  report says is that, and it's not exclusive to the

         17  Department. My sense is the Hehir Report is saying

         18  that special ed all over the country is premised on

         19  the medical model, and that the medical model

         20  essentially says that the child needs to be

         21  diagnosed, and has, as it were, an illness, that

         22  needs to be treated. And that, they claim, leads to

         23  a poorer provision of special ed services than using

         24  a non-medical model, a school environment model.

         25                 And they say very clearly that it is
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          2  the medical model of disability that the Department

          3  of Education is using.

          4                 They'd also say that there might be

          5  some instances in which that is more appropriate,

          6  where there really is a disease model, as it were,

          7  might be appropriate. But given that we have 154,000

          8  special ed students, most of whom have, or 46

          9  percent are speech impaired, and 24 percent -- it's

         10  in the handout, have language, 46 are special

         11  students, have learning disabilities, I'm sorry; 24

         12  percent have speech language impairments, that the

         13  medical model is extremely problematic.

         14                 The experts conclude that although,

         15  and I'm just quoting here, "Although the medical

         16  model of disability is useful in determining the

         17  existence of some disabilities, and is relevant to

         18  certain intervention decisions, reliance on this

         19  model alone is problematic. This practice of moving

         20  large number of students with disabilities out of

         21  their home schools to receive special education

         22  services is not only educationally questionable, but

         23  is costly and unnecessary."

         24                 To me, if that is true, that is a

         25  fairly damning, not because of bad intentions, but
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          2  it suggests that we're trying to improve special ed

          3  on a false premise, and that we really need to

          4  rethink the model and build the service delivery

          5  around a correct model.

          6                 And I'm interested in whether you

          7  agree with the Hehir Report on that.

          8                 In any case, whatever you think of

          9  the model, there is no doubt that we spend 4.2

         10  billion a year, essentially a quarter of our

         11  education budget, with, in my view, and in the Hehir

         12  report's review dreadful results. 45 percent of our

         13  special ed students drop out, and last year, only 82

         14  students received a Regents diploma.

         15                 We will have to take a short break in

         16  the middle of this hearing to vote on the Education

         17  Equity Act once we have a quorum, so without further

         18  ado, let's get started.

         19                 Thank you, Carmen Farina, Deputy

         20  Chancellor of Construction, for being here; Linda

         21  Wernikoff, I forget your exact title, but the head

         22  of Special Ed, that's the way I think of it; and

         23  Michael Best, the General Counsel to the Department

         24  of Education. Welcome.

         25                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: Well, good
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          2  morning. And thank you for the opportunity to

          3  perhaps set some of the record straight and answer

          4  some of your obvious concerns.

          5                 Good morning. And good morning to the

          6  members of the Education. Thank you for the

          7  opportunity of speaking about the progress that

          8  we've made, but really clearly understanding that 40

          9  years of neglect can be overcome in one or two years

         10  of hard work.

         11                 When I became Deputy Chancellor for

         12  Teaching and Learning a year and a half ago, I made

         13  special education a personal priority.

         14                 I think that you will agree that

         15  while we still have much work to do, we're not only

         16  moving in the right direction, but our reforms are

         17  bearing fruit, and later on I will even specifically

         18  respond to your medical model criticisms.

         19                 This is a source of great personal

         20  satisfaction to me after 40 years in this system.

         21  Early in my career, I became all too aware of the

         22  fact that there were a number of staff that had

         23  lower expectations for students with disabilities.

         24  There is one thing that this reform has done, and it

         25  has said very clearly that all children could learn.
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          2  They may need extra support but they can get there,

          3  and even become level three and four students.

          4                 As a teacher, principal, district

          5  superintendent and regional superintendent, I

          6  wrestled with the issue by working with school

          7  community to create inclusive opportunities for

          8  students with disabilities, and to include special

          9  education staff at all school initiatives and

         10  professional development.

         11                 As a professional staff developer,

         12  one of my major jobs was to go around the City and

         13  do the professional development for what then were

         14  called Quip Workshops (phonetic). I became the

         15  master in social studies integrated learning, Quip

         16  Workshops throughout the City, which was

         17  specifically targeted to special ed teachers.

         18  Special ed teachers had their own professional

         19  development totally separate from regular ed and

         20  there was an expectation that they would not have

         21  the same curriculum.

         22                 That could mean something as simple

         23  as ensuring all students were included on a school

         24  trip, or including students with disabilities in

         25  music and art classes.
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          2                 It has also required big idea

          3  implementation, such as the creation of the first

          4  collaborative team teaching class in the creation of

          5  an inclusive program for students with Asperger's

          6  Syndrome, a form of autism, at PS 32 in Region 8.

          7  And that specific program which I helped create as a

          8  superintendent, is being replicated in three other

          9  regions in the City of New York.

         10                 Programs aside, however, I think the

         11  most significant change generated by the Children

         12  First Reforms, is its emphasis on making principals

         13  responsible for the achievement of all students. I

         14  still remember as a building principal walking my

         15  building and going very fast by the special ed

         16  classes because I was very clearly instructed that

         17  those were the classes that the special ed

         18  supervisor controlled.

         19                 Our special ed students are no longer

         20  those kids on the top floor or in the basement of a

         21  building, as they used to be in many places.

         22  Principals can no longer delegate responsibility for

         23  the achievement of those students to others. They

         24  are accountable for the achievement of all students

         25  and their teachers, and they're also responsive to
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          2  the parents of those children.

          3                 At the very core of these

          4  improvements is the fact that the accountability is

          5  squarely on the building principal. There they are

          6  exposed to a standards-based curriculum, the exact

          7  same curriculum as all other children in the

          8  building, with adaptations and modifications as

          9  necessary.

         10                 One of the things that you brought

         11  up, Madam Chairperson, is about the medical model in

         12  terms of the extensive pull-outs that we used to

         13  have. Many of our schools now are doing extensive

         14  push-ins so that you have a speech teacher working

         15  as a second teacher in a classroom with small groups

         16  of kids so that we do not become overly dependent on

         17  that as a model.

         18                 They work as a unified school

         19  community with siblings and friends for their own

         20  communities. For some students this is the first

         21  time around the City that they are attending their

         22  neighborhood schools instead of traveling long

         23  distance in the buses.

         24                 There are some boroughs that for the

         25  first time have home zoned school for children with
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          2  special needs.

          3                 Today principals must be responsive,

          4  and when I visit buildings, I expect them to show me

          5  every single classroom and tell me how they've

          6  incorporated those teachers and those students into

          7  their every day life of their building.

          8                 Make no mistake about it, we are

          9  asking a lot of our principals. I know that I as a

         10  principal had to learn a lot. I had to learn not

         11  only compliance issues, but how to instruct students

         12  who are having difficulty in certain areas.

         13                 To support principals, we have

         14  created a variety of special education positions in

         15  the field, staffed by educators with knowledge of

         16  special ed programs and methodologies.

         17                 Special Education Instructional

         18  Support Specialists in each region, about 200 of

         19  them, have been armed with literacy and

         20  differentiated learning approaches, such as Wilson

         21  Language Training and Schools Attuned.

         22                 I know that you've appreciated the

         23  effort we've made in this avenue, and I have to tell

         24  you that when you see Wilson-trained teachers who

         25  are now training regular ed teachers -- this started
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          2  as an approach where we specifically trained special

          3  education, because of the success of this we're now

          4  training special ed teachers as well, and we've done

          5  -- Linda has the exact, but we've trained over

          6  2,600 personnel, representing 931 schools in the

          7  City, and over 1,600 personnel representing 293

          8  schools in Schools Attuned.

          9                 The Schools Attuned approach which

         10  Dr. Melavine from North Carolina has instituted, has

         11  been very instrumental in making sure that all

         12  professionals in a building understand the needs of

         13  special needs students, not just the teachers of

         14  those students.

         15                 This also lessens our reliance on the

         16  medical model, because we are trying early on to

         17  identify the needs of these kids, also understanding

         18  that for too long certain children have been labeled

         19  because of behavior issues rather than real needs

         20  for putting in special classes.

         21                 We have also created a principal

         22  advisory group in the last year and a half that

         23  meets with us regularly to advise us on our

         24  progress. Having these principals from every region

         25  in the City leads a strong authentic voice to our
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          2  assessment and what needs to be changed. It is

          3  through this advisory group that we've made several

          4  fundamental changes.

          5                 One of their major concerns is the

          6  way funding from the budget was channeled into the

          7  schools. Their suggestion is that rather than wait

          8  for the children to show up, that a certain

          9  percentage of the money comes up front so they can

         10  actually program in advance for these students.

         11                 They also requested very strongly

         12  that we provide training for the paraprofessionals

         13  so they in turn could also work in a much more

         14  integrated fashion with their students and we've

         15  actually done that based on their request.

         16                 We have created other support

         17  positions as well. There are now 50 regional

         18  administrators of special education, experts in

         19  special education program development. Again, their

         20  charge is to serve all students.

         21                 The reform changed many things and

         22  created concern among some personnel. We expected

         23  that. Change always generates some resistance and

         24  concern.

         25                 Many staff members have now embraced
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          2  their new roles. I remember my first month on the

          3  job, Linda and I did what we call the "Lecture

          4  Circuit." And we approached close to over 200 school

          5  psychologists. We listened to their anger, we

          6  listened to their fears, and immediately afterwards

          7  we went back to the drawing board and we instituted

          8  25 new positions to address their concerns and to be

          9  sure.  Five-hundred new computers, every school

         10  psychologist is now wired to communicate as

         11  effectively as possible with their community.

         12                 They have successfully transitioned

         13  to special education positions but that are focused

         14  on instructional outcomes.

         15                 We've seen gains and standardized

         16  test scores for students with disabilities support

         17  this observation.

         18                 In this school year, students with

         19  disabilities achieved their highest performance

         20  level, their greatest one-year gains in both ELA and

         21  math, since these tests began in 1999.

         22                 In addition, the percentage of

         23  students with disabilities in grades three to eight

         24  and level one saw the largest one-year decline in

         25  overall performance in ELA in math since the test
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          2  began in 1999.

          3                 Am I satisfied with these numbers?

          4  Absolutely not. But you cannot build an entire new

          5  system after so many years of neglect in just a few

          6  months and years.

          7                 Am I, for the first time, certain in

          8  40 years that we have the strength of commitment and

          9  best practices? Yes. Look at what we have

         10  accomplished in only two years. We have increased

         11  the number of students, educated inclusive general

         12  education settings for the majority of the day by

         13  almost eight percent since our reform began.

         14                 This was one of the first tasks that

         15  I gave the regional superintendents, that I wanted

         16  to see in every region in the City a big emphasis on

         17  CTT classes.

         18                 We now have almost 37 percent more

         19  students with disabilities in the rich environment

         20  of these classes, and a resource-rich environment

         21  that we did prior to reorganization.

         22                 When you visit these classrooms, they

         23  have class libraries, they have print-rich

         24  environments, they have the math curriculum.

         25                 I used to visit classes in the past
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          2  where there were no libraries and kids would spend

          3  time working on blocks, Legos and any other toys

          4  that did not involve enriched academic environments.

          5                 For years we have placed much

          6  emphasis on compliance processes and special ed. As

          7  a result, real instructional outcomes took a back

          8  seat to administrative obligations.

          9                 We have streamlined the evaluation

         10  process. Historically, IEPs were a bureaucratic

         11  process, not a roadmap, for academic success for a

         12  particular child in a particular school.

         13                 I remember sitting at these IEP

         14  hearings as a principal and as a teacher, and quite

         15  often it became just a dialogue and an effort to

         16  convince a parent to do something, the parent coming

         17  back, never talking about instruction. We now have

         18  made instruction our main vehicle for improving the

         19  education of these students.

         20                 Educators of the child's school who

         21  know the child are now making the preponderance

         22  evaluation and recommendations.

         23                 These personnel are also much more

         24  likely to make appropriate decisions than a central

         25  office personnel who never met the child.
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          2                 I will tell you personally as a

          3  principal, I used to make sure that when a parent

          4  asked for an IEP hearing, I told them never to do it

          5  over the summer, because over the summer it was done

          6  by people who were getting procession and did not

          7  necessarily know the child, and sometimes would

          8  actually hold off to make sure the child got the

          9  services from the people who knew them the best.

         10                 We are delighted that the number of

         11  recommendations completed during the last year kept

         12  pace with the preorganization levels while we

         13  returned over 1,000 special education teachers,

         14  known as education evaluators, to teaching position.

         15                 We have lessened the amount of

         16  unfilled vacancies in special ed classrooms, which

         17  was a disaster for many years. That means that more

         18  children have actually a teacher that is well

         19  trained in the process of special education in the

         20  classroom with the children at all times.

         21                 We also have reason to believe that

         22  these evaluations are increasingly more useful to

         23  teachers as we continue to emphasize the natural

         24  interrelationship between evaluation and services.

         25                 In keeping with the improved
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          2  evaluation process, we held for the first time this

          3  year, and I give Linda all the credit for this, I

          4  know that as a superintendent one of the biggest

          5  complaints that I heard, and even when I became

          6  Deputy Chancellor from parents was that they did not

          7  have access to visit classrooms to see where their

          8  students, based on IEPs, and I'm talking about

          9  three-year-old and four-year-old, parents of three-

         10  and four-year-olds, where they might apply for a

         11  school for their child to meet their child's needs.

         12                 This year we held over 30 orientation

         13  fairs for parents of students with disabilities who

         14  would be going into kindergarten.

         15                 The fairs were extremely successful,

         16  and probably one of the first times that we got lots

         17  of love letters.

         18                 Right, Linda?

         19                 MS. WERNIKOFF: Yes.

         20                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: Lots of

         21  love letters, and a commendation from the State

         22  saying that this is one of the most productive

         23  beginning of schools for early childhood that they

         24  have seen in the State of New York.

         25                 These multiple forums, the
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          2  accompanying materials were extremely helpful to

          3  parents who are really absolutely right when they

          4  are particularly concerned, because their children

          5  need more, not less.

          6                 The increased knowledge and

          7  familiarity with this process will undoubtedly

          8  result in a smoother, less stressful transition from

          9  preschool to elementary school for these families.

         10                 Recently, and it's the Hehir Report

         11  you referred to, we received the results of

         12  independent comprehensive management report. The

         13  evaluation was conducted by a leading expert in the

         14  field, Dr. Thomas Hehir, Harvard Graduate School of

         15  Education, and formerly the Director of Special

         16  Education Programs in the U.S. Department of

         17  Education.

         18                 The independent report found that

         19  we're headed in the right direction with our Special

         20  Ed reform.

         21                 And by the way, I want to emphasize

         22  that "heading in the right direction" are really

         23  good words, because dysfunctional has a very strong

         24  negative connotation. I like hitting in the right

         25  direction, it makes me feel better.
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          2                 Despite the complex nature of

          3  historical problems in special education, we have

          4  made headway in a very short period of time. This

          5  affirmation strengthens our commitment to the

          6  reforms.

          7                 This report also offers

          8  recommendations, many of which are focusing on

          9  accelerating professional development, something

         10  that I'm particularly proud of, for the first time

         11  ever in education in New York City, special ed

         12  teachers and regular ed teachers, are going to

         13  professional development together and learning from

         14  each other.

         15                 I just went to a middle school where

         16  Wilson trained special ed teachers were actually

         17  holding a workshop for the regular ed teachers in

         18  Wilson training. This has very seldom happened in

         19  the New York City Board of Education.

         20                 Continuing role clarification among

         21  staff, increasing numbers of students with

         22  disabilities in inclusive settings and continuing

         23  our significant upgrading of our special education

         24  data system.

         25                 Chairperson Moskowitz, you're
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          2  absolutely correct that for too long many of our

          3  students did not get services in a timely fashion.

          4                 When I first came on board we were

          5  delayed considerably.

          6                 One of the first initiatives we took

          7  on is to ensure that as of last year most services

          8  were done within the first month of school, and this

          9  year, already into the school year, we have yet to

         10  get one complaint about services not being handled

         11  in a timely fashion.

         12                 We have already begun to address this

         13  particular issue and have dedicated an additional 38

         14  million to fastforward these processes.

         15                 I am particularly interested in the

         16  induction of our new data system, and I would like

         17  to be able to, with the press of a button, figure

         18  out how many children are in a CTT class in a

         19  specific region at a specific time.

         20                 The report clearly indicates that we

         21  should push ahead in our course. The report rejects

         22  reinstating any of the old positions or structures.

         23  We will continue to address things that don't always

         24  work.

         25                 Making needed changes in a complex
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          2  system like special education cannot be done

          3  overnight. However, I know we have come a long way.

          4                 The vision is already fully evident

          5  in some of our schools, and we have moved closer to

          6  that vision as a system. We established something

          7  that we call "collaborative model sites" in the City

          8  of New York, and many of them are based on model

          9  sites for special education teaching. And those are

         10  sites that could be visited throughout the City by

         11  any principal who wants to put in a good program in

         12  a particular school.

         13                 Our job is to make sure that that

         14  vision is a reality for all students as soon as

         15  possible. But the one thing I need this Committee to

         16  understand, that this is not just a professional

         17  commitment, this is not just a commitment of the

         18  Children First Initiative, this is a personal

         19  commitment that I make to you on behalf of both

         20  Linda and myself.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Linda, are you

         22  --

         23                 MS. WERNIKOFF: No.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: No, okay.

         25                 We've been joined by Council Member
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          2  Domenic Recchia from Brooklyn and Council Member

          3  Bill DeBlasio from Brooklyn.

          4                 Let me begin by asking, is there any

          5  portion of the Hehir Report that you disagree with?

          6                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: I believe

          7  that the report, to dismantle District 75, is not in

          8  the best interest of the children and the people of

          9  New York City. So we do not feel --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I didn't read

         11  anywhere that the report said District 75 should be

         12  dismantled. I remember them saying that one of the

         13  criticisms they had was that you were not -- that's

         14  not quite right. Maybe --

         15                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: Over five

         16  years.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I thought it

         18  should be more integrated.

         19                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: Let me be

         20  clear. We have no intention of dismantling. The

         21  integration actually started over a year ago. The

         22  superintendent of District 75, Susan Irba, has

         23  joined the Superintendents' Committee, that I work

         24  with every other week. She is part of all our

         25  conversations. For the first time ever she is
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          2  involved in individual conversations with every

          3  regional superintendent.

          4                 They make decisions jointly,

          5  particularly when it comes to space issues and how

          6  we work with students --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Okay. So, just

          8  getting back to the issue of the Hehir Report and

          9  what you disagree with, it's your interpretation

         10  that the report says that District 75 should be shut

         11  down, and you disagree?

         12                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: Over a

         13  five-year period, yes, we do.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Okay.

         15                 Anything else in the Hehir Report you

         16  disagree with?

         17                 MS. WERNIKOFF: What we are doing now

         18  is, I think what we have done is we have dedicated

         19  $38 million to those areas that we thought were the

         20  highest priority in the recommendations. Many of the

         21  recommendations in the Hehir Report are focused on a

         22  much-improved data system so that we could have more

         23  timely information to better manage the system, and

         24  also to hold the whole system accountable for

         25  students with disabilities, and also much of it
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          2  focuses on professional development, whether it's

          3  professional development for principals or teachers

          4  on access to the curriculum.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: They say that.

          6                 MS. WERNIKOFF: Right.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: You agree with

          8  them.

          9                 MS. WERNIKOFF: Absolutely. We have --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: So is there

         11  anything -- I just want to take this sort of --

         12                 MS. WERNIKOFF: Sure.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: -- Chunk by

         14  chunk.

         15                 Is there anything in the report that

         16  anyone sitting at the table disagrees with?

         17                 MS. WERNIKOFF: Except for District

         18  75, we haven't ruled out anything in the report, and

         19  we're considering everything that's in the report at

         20  this time.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Are there any

         22  criticisms of the delivery of your services that you

         23  disagree with? Where you say, you know, these

         24  experts, they're from Harvard, but they got it

         25  wrong?
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          2                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: I would say

          3  that the only thing that I would -- and, you know,

          4  we've spoken to him and we've spoken to many people,

          5  that some of the classroom delivery of services may

          6  not always be evident to someone who is researching,

          7  you know, the amount of times that he did it. I

          8  think the integration of professional development is

          9  actually deeper and better than may appear at

         10  certain parts of the report.

         11                 I know, for example, in going back to

         12  your medical model, that we are using speech

         13  teachers, speech therapists very differently in the

         14  last year and a half than may have been used in the

         15  past. They are being used not just to drive IEPs,

         16  but also they're being used as professional staff

         17  developers for teachers particularly in grades K to

         18  2. They are being used in schools, not just for

         19  related services, but for all students, particularly

         20  in terms of, again, the early grades. So, those are

         21  things --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: So, you think

         23  that the professional development you provided is

         24  better than the Hehir Report indicates?

         25                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: I think
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          2  it's deeper than the Hehir Report indicates.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Deeper,

          4  better. Sounds like you think better.

          5                 Anything else you disagree with the

          6  Hehir Report on?

          7                 MS. WERNIKOFF: Well, I would just

          8  like to point out that throughout the report, the

          9  Hehir report says that at the time of their visit.

         10  So there are changes, or advancements that have

         11  made, been made since the time of this report.

         12                 So, I mean, some of those things,

         13  again, there are issues that I think people already

         14  addressed that are not evident in this report.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Well, these

         16  are pretty big picture criticisms, though. It's not

         17  as if they're -- the public should understand that

         18  their sample is rather small.

         19                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: I'd like to

         20  state that these were recommendations.

         21                 For example, one of the

         22  recommendations was that right now in the regions we

         23  have five Raisies (phonetic) who used to be the

         24  Daisies. We have now, one of the recommendations

         25  that they have made was that it makes sense to have
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          2  a hierarchy where one person is overall responsible

          3  for everything. So, it's almost like an

          4  accountability issue. Once we read it, although we

          5  were already thinking in that direction, we decided

          6  to put that into motion right away.

          7                 So, I think the recommendations help

          8  us understand that the way we're going is in the

          9  right direction, but also allows us to fine-tune the

         10  things that we were moving forward.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Okay.

         12                 So, it sounds like other than

         13  District 75, and other than the fact that you think

         14  more highly of the professional development, you

         15  agree by and large with the criticisms of the Hehir

         16  Report?

         17                 I'm going to just take that as a yes.

         18                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Okay.

         20                 Now, let me just -- let's start with

         21  the medical model, because I didn't think that was

         22  addressed.

         23                 I assume, since you didn't say that

         24  was one of the things you disagree with, that you

         25  agree that the medical model may be a flawed model?
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          2                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: What I

          3  agree with, and I think there's another way of

          4  looking at this, is that for too long we have used

          5  the most -- the highest level of intervention,

          6  rather than something that might help early on.

          7                 So, for example, if we can use good

          8  curriculum approaches and adaptations as early as

          9  first and second grade, we do not have to by grades

         10  three and four, and Wilson being one of them, we can

         11  train and entire region and schools on Schools

         12  Attuned. We will not have to perhaps send as many

         13  kids through an IEP for a more restrictive

         14  environment.

         15                 Our hope, and it has always been our

         16  hope, that we would move to LRE, Least Restrictive

         17  Environment. This is what we're doing. I think we're

         18  going to see it the same way that if you can have a

         19  speech teacher working with children without an IEP

         20  --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: But an IEP

         22  doesn't say that it's restrictive. The IEP may say

         23  whatever it says.

         24                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: An IEP can

         25  sometimes cause in the course of the day three
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          2  pull-outs of a child. And it's always been our

          3  intention to limit the amount of pull-outs, which is

          4  a medical model to some degree. Because if a child

          5  is being pulled out during an instructional time,

          6  who needs extra instructional time, to some degree

          7  that doesn't make any sense. Because then you have

          8  to make up to compensate for that.

          9                 So, our hope was that a lot of the

         10  intervention that we would put in place would also

         11  lessen the need for kids to be pulled out. But if

         12  there is a strong intervention that is required --

         13  OT is not something that a classroom teacher can do.

         14  That's part of what the need --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Can you hold

         16  off on tactics.

         17                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: Okay.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Which you know

         19  far more about than I do, and that you know more

         20  about strategy than I do. But as I understand it,

         21  the Hehir report is saying, in terms of strategy,

         22  we're operating on a lousy principle, the principle

         23  being the medical model.

         24                 So you agree with that or not?

         25  Because it's very explicit in the report. They say
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          2  it over -- I think I would estimate that on every

          3  page of this 100-page report, they mention that you

          4  and every other urban school district is using the

          5  medical model, and you shouldn't be.

          6                 MS. WERNIKOFF: Let me say this, just

          7  so you know. First of all, there is no legal

          8  definition of medical model versus social model.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I'm not

         10  interested in the legal.

         11                 MS. WERNIKOFF: Just so you know, it's

         12  a philosophical debate --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I understand

         14  that. I'm asking about first principles.

         15                 MS. WERNIKOFF: And I think that we

         16  are already moving away from the medical model by

         17  refocusing on instruction in the classroom.

         18                 For a long time, and in the Hehir

         19  Report on page 17 he says that there has been an

         20  emphasis on compliance with time lines and

         21  procedures, rather than improvement of the quality

         22  of instructional programs for students with

         23  disabilities. By having everybody only focusing on

         24  the procedure and not what goes on in the classroom,

         25  there was this belief that the only way to provide
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          2  support for a student with a disability, was to

          3  build on all these supplemental services, such as

          4  speech, OT and PT and pull them out of classroom

          5  instruction. By refocusing on classroom instruction

          6  and providing teachers with the methodologies to

          7  work with students in the classroom, you lessen the

          8  need for all these pull-out therapies.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: But this

         10  report is hot off the press. I mean, it was issued,

         11  what, ten days ago? Clearly, you can't argue that

         12  somehow in the last ten days you've moved away from

         13  the medical model.

         14                 MS. WERNIKOFF: We started moving away

         15  from the medical model two years ago when we

         16  announced Children First and said that we were

         17  refocusing on instruction in classroom.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: So you don't

         19  agree with this profound criticism that the New York

         20  City school system is imbedded in the medical model

         21  of disability?

         22                 MS. WERNIKOFF: I think what we say is

         23  that we don't disagree that we've been using a

         24  medical model, not unlike any other large urban

         25  district. But we are moving away from that medical
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          2  model, and started to move away from it when we

          3  recommitted or refocused everybody on instruction.

          4  And I think as the report says it's commendable that

          5  even in a short time we're beginning to see change,

          6  but certainly we're not going to move away from a

          7  medical model that was used for 30 years in two

          8  years.

          9                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: But that is

         10  our intention.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: And what would

         12  you say is the name? Do you have a name for the

         13  model that you want to move towards?

         14                 You don't subscribe to the medical

         15  model, you subscribe to the --

         16                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: Good

         17  instruction with adaptations for children with

         18  special needs.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: You're going

         20  to have to come with something a little snappier,

         21  catchier than that.

         22                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: Well, I can

         23  only think of good pedagogical words. Snappy, I'll

         24  need a little longer.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Or good
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          2  education. I assume you want to call it plain old

          3  good education.

          4                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: That's what

          5  I'd like to call it.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Okay.

          7                 So, you're moving away from the

          8  medical model that we've embraced for 30 odd years.

          9  And even though the report seems to indicate it's

         10  alive and well, you're estimation is it's sort of on

         11  its last gasp?

         12                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: Last gasp.

         13  If it took us two years to get to this point of 40

         14  years, last gasp is going to be some time in the

         15  future.

         16                 You cannot undo a lot of practices.

         17  We still have to train a lot of teachers.

         18                 We also have to let parents know.

         19  This is not just as much of our teachers. It's about

         20  parents.

         21                 A lot of these medical model

         22  modifications are parent requested. So, a lot of it

         23  is also how do we do parent workshops? How do we

         24  instruct parents how these services can be provided

         25  through an educationally enriched climate. And
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          2  that's part of our challenge, but it's certainly

          3  where we're going.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Okay. I'm a

          5  little reluctant to subscribe to what I hear, sort

          6  of blaming the parent. I mean, I never heard of OT

          7  before someone told me my kid needed it. You know,

          8  occupational therapy. I said to myself, my God, he

          9  doesn't have a job. How could he need occupational

         10  therapy?

         11                 So, I'm not sure that it's really

         12  fair to say that somehow parents are demanding OT,

         13  they don't even know what it is. All they know is

         14  that, you know, generally it's the clinicians who

         15  come in who say, you know, your kid has trouble with

         16  handwriting.

         17                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: All right.

         18  Let me just say very personally, that may be

         19  something that's coming out of teachers who

         20  understand that we need to move the kids as quickly

         21  as we can.

         22                 But let me tell you that as a former

         23  principal, in your neighborhood on the Upper East

         24  Side, 50 percent of kids who came from private

         25  nursery schools, came with IEPs on language-delayed
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          2  issues, and speech became one of the most important

          3  new IEP-driven things, based on parents who

          4  requested it and who had it put there by their

          5  nursery school providers. And it's a national issue.

          6  This is not a New York City issue.

          7                 So, how do we imbed the strategies of

          8  a good speech teacher into the instruction of K 1

          9  and 2 teachers. That is one of our challenges, but

         10  that's what I'm talking about.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Okay. But then

         12  there's a class issue here. I'm not suggesting that

         13  there isn't a socioeconomic difference in terms of

         14  the consumers. More middle-class parents, although I

         15  have never heard of OT before I got into this, but

         16  presumably I concede that more middle class parents

         17  may know more about, oh, have heard of a speech

         18  therapist. But, you know, then you need to really

         19  provide the data, if that's going to be your

         20  assertion, because I doubt in, you know, your

         21  average Title 1 school that parents are knocking

         22  down the door asking for physical therapy for their

         23  kids.

         24                 But anyway, let's leave that aside

         25  for the moment. I want to talk about one other big
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          2  picture point before we go on to some of the other

          3  points.

          4                 Other than the medical model, one of

          5  the other underlying themes of the report seems to

          6  be that Jose Pi constrains the Department in making

          7  more fundamental reforms.

          8                 And I understand, I know Michael is

          9  chomping at the bit, to jump in and say he cannot

         10  say anything. But let me try and preempt that and

         11  simply say I am not interested in your litigation

         12  strategy. I am not interested in any of your tactics

         13  and your back and forth with the opposing parties.

         14  But I am interested in the delivery of special ed,

         15  and it's very difficult to talk about special ed

         16  without mentioning Jose Pi.

         17                 So, I'm interested in philosophically

         18  what is your view about the extent to which this

         19  constrained the Department in terms of being

         20  innovative about the delivery of special ed?

         21                 MR. BEST: Well, I'll just say this.

         22  I'm not going to say nothing.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Refreshing.

         24                 MR. BEST: As a general proposition,

         25  it is not best for government or for any other
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          2  enterprise to be constrained by class action

          3  decrees, judgments, stipulations and the like. And

          4  to the extent that court orders, to the extent that

          5  detailed court orders exist, they often prevent --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I'm sorry, can

          7  you speak into the microphone?

          8                 MR. BEST: They often prevent

          9  innovation, and they often prevent flexibility which

         10  is needed.

         11                 We're talking here, as Deputy

         12  Chancellor Farina has been mentioning, in turning

         13  something around that's been a problem for a very

         14  long time.

         15                 In Jose Pi, without getting into the

         16  specifics of the judgments, there's a judgment from

         17  1980, there are stipulations and decrees and all

         18  sorts of things going back that have an overlay all

         19  throughout the system that we have to comply with.

         20  It makes it more difficult, frankly, for us to have

         21  this sort of flexibility that we think we need in

         22  order to change the system.

         23                 We've made a lot of changes,

         24  nevertheless. We hope that going forward the

         25  litigation won't constrain us from making needed
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          2  changes. And we've already announced a number of

          3  changes we're going to make that we think will be

          4  beneficial, not just from the perspective of

          5  complying with judgments, but from the perspective

          6  of delivering services.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: So,

          8  philosophically, philosophically you're willing to

          9  say that it can inhibit innovation?

         10                 MR. BEST: I think that any consent

         11  decree can, yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: And are you

         13  willing to talk about the ways in which Jose Pi

         14  inhibit innovation?

         15                 MR. BEST: I would rather not get into

         16  the specifics of the Jose Pi judgment, simply

         17  because there are -- I don't want to get into, you

         18  know, legal -- other than compliance with the

         19  federal law which we can talk about, I'd rather not

         20  get into the specifics of anything else to do with

         21  the Jose Pi, with any Jose Pi negotiations that may

         22  be going on. So, I want to be very careful about

         23  that.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Can I ask -- I

         25  want to try this question, I'll see if Michael lets
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          2  anyone answer.

          3                 Does Jose Pi influence nine out of

          4  ten decisions you make about the delivery of the

          5  service?

          6                 MR. BEST: It's hard to put a

          7  statistical number on how Jose Pi does it. But Jose

          8  Pi has been the governing decree in the special

          9  education system for 26 years now.

         10                 It is hard to say that there is

         11  anything that goes on in the special ed that we

         12  don't have to consider the Jose Pi judgment

         13  stipulations --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Okay, I'm

         15  going to take that as a yes. I'll just point out

         16  that it's sort of astounding to be in the public

         17  policy arena, and I'm not unsympathetic, you're the

         18  lawyer, and you're going to have to go into court

         19  and argue with your so-called adversaries. I'm not

         20  unsympathetic to your dilemma, but I just want to

         21  state for the record that it's astounding that we

         22  can't have a public policy decision about whether

         23  Jose Pi is constraining or not or how much of your

         24  decision making is influenced by that. All of that

         25  is off limits because whenever we want to talk about
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          2  it, we're told we can't, and the litigation has been

          3  going on since 1979. I think that that is a terrible

          4  problem.

          5                 Let me ask one factual question. Can

          6  one get the consent decree? Is there a document

          7  where I could look at?

          8                 MR. BEST: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: And where does

         10  one get that document? I didn't find it on the DOE's

         11  website.

         12                 MR. BEST: No, it's not going to be on

         13  the website.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Okay.

         15                 MR. BEST: It's a public document. I

         16  can provide you a copy.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: And is there

         18  any reason it's not on the DOE website?

         19                 MR. BEST: I frankly don't think --

         20  personally, I don't think that putting it on the

         21  website would be of any use to the public, it's a

         22  legal document.

         23                 I don't think it's really going to be

         24  all that informative.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Well, if it's
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          2  not, it's certainly you don't think there's any harm

          3  done. I'd like to request that you ask the

          4  Chancellor to put it on the DOE website. So, I don't

          5  really feel like having to go to the court house. I

          6  wanted to get a copy of it in preparation for this

          7  hearing, because I wanted to understand the Hehir

          8  Report which claims that every aspect of your

          9  decision-making is affected by the Jose Pi, and so I

         10  wanted to see what are the nuts and bolts of that

         11  consent decree that are affecting your

         12  decision-making. And my counsel won't have to trapse

         13  over to the court house, and I then I wouldn't be

         14  able to do it because I wouldn't know exactly what

         15  I'm looking for, and that it would take time to

         16  produce; why don't you just put it on the website

         17  and then anyone who is interested could look at it?

         18                 I'd like to make a formal request,

         19  and if Erin could get back to me this afternoon and

         20  let me know what your decision is, that would be

         21  helpful. So, I'm making a formal request. I could

         22  e-mail the Chancellor right now, but since you're

         23  sitting here --

         24                 MR. BEST: Well, I heard your formal

         25  request, I'm not sure how you want me to respond.
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          2  You've asked Erin to come back to you and she'll get

          3  back to you later today.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Right. Thank

          5  you.

          6                 Let me -- we've been joined by a

          7  number of members of the Committee. Council Member

          8  Oliver Koppell from the Bronx. We're also joined by

          9  Gale Brewer, who is not a member of the Committee

         10  but we're delighted that you're here.

         11                 Council Member Andrew Lanza from

         12  Staten Island, Council Member Robert Jackson from

         13  Manhattan, Council Member Helen Foster from the

         14  Bronx, Council Member Leroy Comrie from Queens. We

         15  are going to take a brief intermission in order to

         16  vote on the Education Equity Act.

         17                 This is a bill that relates to the

         18  provision of translation services. This Committee

         19  has found that language presents a substantial

         20  barrier to parents' involvement in their education.

         21                 We've had numerous meetings on this,

         22  and an extensive hearing. It has always been the

         23  belief of this Committee that parental involvement

         24  is key to children's success in school, and at

         25  transparency and access to the school system are
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          2  critical.

          3                 All the members of the Committee

          4  should have received over the course of the last

          5  couple of days a final version of this. This bill is

          6  an attempt to streamline the process, not place

          7  undue burdens on the Department. It's in keeping

          8  with its underlying philosophical stance in terms of

          9  creating the translation unit, but it does codify

         10  into law the provision of translation services.

         11                 When we were crafting this bill, one

         12  of the things we tried to do is think about the

         13  easiest way to provide translation services, and,

         14  so, we have emphasized telephone translations. The

         15  idea has not, again, been to either place undue

         16  administrative burdens on the Department, or

         17  monumental costs on the Department.

         18                 We understand it's a zero sum game,

         19  and the Department is trying to do many, many

         20  things, but we also believe that parents have to

         21  have access and have to be able to understand the

         22  basic rules of the game and be able to advocate on

         23  behalf of their children.

         24                 This bill was authored initially by

         25  Hiram Monserrate, who I thought was going to be here
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          2  but I don't see him.

          3                 If anyone would like to comment on

          4  the bill, please feel free to do so.

          5                 If not, you can also comment when you

          6  vote, if that is your preference. I don't see any

          7  hands, then if the clerk could call the roll.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Moskowitz.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I vote aye.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Comrie.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I'd like to

         12  explain my vote.

         13                 I'm going to vote aye on this bill. I

         14  think it's a necessary bill. As we've heard other

         15  testimony on it, primarily this will help parents

         16  that are trying to get an understanding of what they

         17  need to do, easier access to translation services.

         18  It's very difficult for parents that are not English

         19  speaking parents to even understand that sometimes

         20  they need to reach out for support, and the systems

         21  that are in place on that are really not adequate,

         22  even with the proposed changes.

         23                 So, I hope that DOE will embrace this

         24  in the spirit of what it's meant, which is improve

         25  parent access to services and implement all the
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          2  aspects of this bill sooner rather than later. I

          3  vote aye.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: DeBlasio.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Madam Chair,

          6  permission to explain my vote?

          7                 Madam Chair, I just want to thank you

          8  for your leadership and thank the whole committee.

          9  We, in the General Welfare Committee, worked on this

         10  issue a few months back in terms of social services.

         11  I think it's equally important in terms of

         12  education. The whole issue I think we need to

         13  explain to the people in New York City is, first

         14  it's a matter of fairness to ensure that people of

         15  all backgrounds with all languages get equal

         16  service.

         17                 But second, I would also say to each

         18  and every taxpayer that when we're ensuring that

         19  children get the services they need in a timely

         20  manner, we're going to have a lot better outcomes.

         21  We're going to have better-educated kids, we're

         22  going to have families that are supported and are

         23  not struggling as much.

         24                 So, I think this is a very good bill

         25  in terms of fairness and also in terms of ensuring
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          2  that every dollar that will be spent will have the

          3  maximum positive effect for our children. I vote

          4  aye. Thank you.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Foster.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Aye.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Jackson.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Madam Chair,

          9  may I be excused to explain my vote?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I apologize

         12  for being late.

         13                 I think this is a no-brainer. Any

         14  time that you have 8 million people in New York

         15  City, 1.1 million school children in New York City,

         16  and New York City is a city of immigrants, and as a

         17  result of that we have to be able to adjust and be

         18  flexible to meet the needs of our constituents. And

         19  our constituents need translation services, and, so,

         20  this bill will have documents and information going

         21  out in nine languages, which includes English, and I

         22  think it's the right thing to do, and it's being

         23  proactive on behalf of the people of New York City,

         24  and I wholeheartedly vote aye.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Koppell.

                                                            52

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Aye.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Recchia.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Aye.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Yassky.

          6                 (No response.)

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Liu.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Lanza.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Permission to

         11  explain my vote, Madam Chair?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Of course.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Thank you.

         14                 Madam Chair, I'm going to be voting

         15  no on this bill because I believe that it sends the

         16  wrong message, and ultimately the result will be

         17  that we will hurt the people that this bill suggests

         18  that it is attempting to help.

         19                 You know, I note that in the

         20  legislative back-up to the bill it is noted that

         21  there are 200 languages spoken in the City of New

         22  York. I would imagine that many of those languages

         23  perhaps are spoken at the homes of parents whose

         24  children attend public school. And, yet, we're

         25  talking about translation services for nine
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          2  languages, nine out of 200.

          3                 So, it seems that even if I were to

          4  agree with the premise of this bill, we're leaving

          5  out many children across this City.

          6                 But really that's not my objection to

          7  this bill. My objection to this bill is the fact

          8  that in a city where we spend close to 15 billion,

          9  or more than 15 billion, I'm not exactly sure at

         10  this point, on the education of our children, $15

         11  billion. I think it's more than just about any other

         12  municipality in the entire country spends on the

         13  education of its children, and yet, as I got out

         14  into the district and across the City, I can't find

         15  many people that are happy with what's happening in

         16  our school system. And every single year we spend

         17  more money, and that seems always to be the answer,

         18  let's spend more money.

         19                 And I am not here to argue against

         20  providing resources to the public school system or

         21  to our children. What I'm here to argue is that we

         22  ought to do it intelligently, and I think this is an

         23  unintelligent expenditure of taxpayers' money.

         24                 We can't say, we can't sit here

         25  honestly and look at the 14 pages that this bill is
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          2  written upon and say that this is not creating an

          3  undue hardship on the system.

          4                 We can't in good conscience say that

          5  this is not just the creation of more bureaucracy at

          6  a great expense to the taxpayers of this City.

          7                 And you know where this money is

          8  being spent? Let me first tell you where it's not

          9  going to be spent. It's not going to be spent

         10  teaching our children how to read. It's not going to

         11  be spent teaching our children math. It's not going

         12  to be spent teaching our children science. It's not

         13  going to be spent teaching our children literature.

         14  And it's not, it's not going to be spent teaching

         15  our children how to speak English. And any

         16  worthwhile study that has been done in this country

         17  will tell you that children who grow up not

         18  proficient in English will be at a disadvantage in

         19  this country for the rest of their lives when it

         20  comes to getting a job and trying to make a living

         21  for their family.

         22                 That's a fact. English is the primary

         23  language spoken in this country, and when we tell

         24  our children that it's not important to learn

         25  English, we hurt them, and we hurt them for the rest
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          2  of their lives. And that is the message we are

          3  sending here. We are saying it's not important to

          4  learn English. We're saying that it's not important

          5  to understand and appreciate that English is the

          6  spoken language of this country. And what we ought

          7  to be doing, if we want to help these children, is

          8  we ought to be taking this money, if we want to

          9  increase the bureaucracy, and we want to spend yet

         10  more of our taxpayers' dollars to improve the

         11  education of our children. We ought to take this

         12  money and teach them how to speak English, because

         13  that will be a benefit for the rest of their lives.

         14                 So, I cannot in good conscience vote

         15  for a bill -- and as I said, 200 languages, we

         16  select nine, I don't understand the logic there.

         17  There are lots of languages that I know people speak

         18  in my district that are not going to be translated,

         19  so we seem to be leaving those children out, if in

         20  fact this is something that would help them, which I

         21  believe it does not, but in good conscience, I can't

         22  vote for yet another increase in one of the most

         23  bloated bureaucracies in the nation, in a way that I

         24  believe will take away from the education of our

         25  children, and focus on precisely the wrong thing.
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          2  Precisely the wrong thing.

          3                 So, Madam Chair, I respect your

          4  leadership when it comes to the work you've done on

          5  this Committee, but I, in good conscience, must vote

          6  no on this bill.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you.

          8                 We're going to hear briefly from the

          9  sponsor of the bill, Hiram Monserrate, and then

         10  we're going to get back to the special ed hearing.

         11                 Council Member Monserrate.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you

         13  very much, and good morning to all. And let me first

         14  and foremost commend the Chairperson of this

         15  Committee, who has really done an extraordinary

         16  amount of work, to the Counsel to the Committee, and

         17  to all the staff of the Education Committee that

         18  have spent countless hours working on this bill on

         19  different measures and making this bill even better

         20  than it was when it was first introduced.

         21                 My colleagues, I urge you all to

         22  support this bill, and I thank you for your

         23  expressed support.

         24                 This bill attempts to engage parents

         25  who many times and otherwise are not part of their
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          2  children's education, and in fact studies have

          3  proven that parental involvement in their children's

          4  education goes a long way.

          5                 Being an individual who was born to

          6  non-English-speaking parents, early on I knew from

          7  my personal experience, it took me several years to

          8  in fact catch up and to, quote, learn English. This

          9  is not about in any way, shape or form stopping

         10  people or children from learning English. In fact,

         11  we are confident and hopeful that this measure will

         12  go a long way towards ensuring that end, and that is

         13  that everyone should be speaking English and

         14  everyone should participate in this education in the

         15  City of New York, and I'm very proud to have

         16  sponsored this bill and to have the tremendous

         17  amount of support, not only from Council members

         18  here in these chambers, but advocates in education,

         19  specialists and the UFT.

         20                 Thank you very much, Madam Chair.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you.

         22                 I want to go back to the Hehir

         23  Report. I have three or four more questions. One of

         24  the things that the Hehir Report does, which I found

         25  very helpful, is all these comparisons with other
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          2  cities. And I wanted to give you a couple of

          3  examples.

          4                 New York City employs 11,810 special

          5  education teachers, 1,170 school psychologists,

          6  2,640 counselors, 2,015 speech language therapists,

          7  and 1,151 occupational therapists.

          8                 As a result, New York City has more

          9  staff members per pupil than Chicago or Los Angeles

         10  or as the nation as a whole. The ratio, there are

         11  135 students for every staff member here, while in

         12  Chicago the ratio is 154 to 1, and the national

         13  average is 353 to 1.

         14                 Even though we have this higher,

         15  larger staff, the results don't seem twice as good

         16  as the national average.

         17                 I assume your conclusion is not that

         18  we should have fewer people on staff? And if that is

         19  your conclusion, why? Why is there this disparity?

         20                 MS. WERNIKOFF: I think what we would

         21  say is that it's not about reducing staff, it's

         22  about redirecting staff to instructional support

         23  roles. Rather than having people simply sit in

         24  meetings and work on process developing IEPs and

         25  paper-driven process, it's about redirecting people
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          2  to instruction, having the related service providers

          3  serve in the classroom collaborating with teachers,

          4  social workers in the schools working with teachers

          5  on children with behavioral or family issues. So,

          6  it's about redirecting everybody's focus from what

          7  was compliance and procedure and paper to classroom

          8  support.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: So do you

         10  think our teacher/pupil ratio is right and Chicago

         11  is getting it wrong?

         12                 MS. WERNIKOFF: Well, first of all, I

         13  don't think it's a matter of right or wrong. I don't

         14  think that every school system is required to have a

         15  continuum of services where you describe the

         16  different types of services and staffing ratios that

         17  would be available.

         18                 I don't know that every one of

         19  Chicago's programs and services are similar or like

         20  New York City, so I don't think it's about are the

         21  ratios correct, because we all have different

         22  service delivery models based on our own needs of

         23  our population. However, I do believe that one of

         24  the issues that is throughout the Hehir Report is

         25  that it basically says that we are in the right
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          2  direction in refocusing all of these staff back to

          3  supporting instruction, rather than procedural

          4  issues.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: But if we have

          6  double the number of staff members per student,

          7  should we get double the results, educational

          8  results?

          9                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: I think

         10  you're going to see some of that in exactly the way

         11  Linda said, in how we redeploy them.

         12                 For too long the majority of the time

         13  of many of these people were spent doing paperwork

         14  and sitting in district offices or regional offices.

         15  The majority of the time of these very same people

         16  now is being spent directly in services to children

         17  at the school level. That will show us in a very

         18  short period of time I think results that are moving

         19  in the direction that we want to go.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: All right, I'm

         21  concerned that that's sort of a lucy-goosie answer.

         22                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: I'll be

         23  honest with you --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I understand

         25  that, you know, it's not a science, I understand
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          2  that. But still you have to decide whether your

          3  staffing ratio is appropriate or not, and whether

          4  you're getting the bang for the buck. And your

          5  staffing ratio is completely out of whack, and I

          6  don't mean that that's a bad thing, if you're going

          7  to argue it's a good thing, but it's completely out

          8  of whack with other major cities and the nation as a

          9  whole.

         10                 Are you getting, and that's a costly

         11  investment, are you getting your return?

         12                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: I think one

         13  of the things we'll have to do is go to Chicago and

         14  see what their promotion grades are. Are they able

         15  to get the kids to the level of achievement that

         16  we're getting here? Are their scores in their

         17  reading and math tests increasing, and are they

         18  promoting more kids out of Regents which they do not

         19  have and we have to show that the kids are getting a

         20  really high caliber education?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: All right, let

         22  me ask the question a different way. Is there any

         23  school district in the country that has a worse, as

         24  it were, student/teacher ratio that's getting better

         25  results?
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          2                 MS. WERNIKOFF: I wouldn't know. But

          3  I'd just like to point out that Los Angeles has a

          4  lot of issues with delivery and special ed services.

          5  It's been well documented in the papers recently, so

          6  I don't know that I would look to Los Angeles

          7  necessarily as a comparison.

          8                 I think what we need to look at are

          9  the needs of the children in New York City, and we

         10  believe that we have developed programs and supports

         11  to meet the needs of the children in New York City.

         12                 I also think that we are on the right

         13  path and that we are redirecting all of the staff to

         14  look at how do you support instruction.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: But are we

         16  taking the attitude, and I often do, so I'm guilty

         17  of this, so we're New York so we do better?

         18                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: Let me put

         19  this another way. Rather than look at districts that

         20  are doing things that I don't think are particularly

         21  successful in the ratio, we started looking in

         22  places that are very successful. When we started

         23  looking at our models and how we were going to move

         24  forward, we looked at certain parts of small

         25  districts where they had child study teams, where

                                                            63

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  they had a support services. We went to North

          3  Carolina to look at the Mel Levine model, Schools

          4  Attuned. So, rather than try to compare us with

          5  large cities who may have a whole bunch of other

          6  agendas put in there, we're looking where do things

          7  work, and how do we replicate that. And also we have

          8  very large --

          9                 MS. WERNIKOFF: The other thing I

         10  wanted to add, and it's not clear from the report,

         11  we serve a very large non-public school population

         12  so that we, you know, the psychologists that we have

         13  employed also provide a lot of services, evaluation

         14  services for children in parochial and private

         15  schools, as well as a lot of our service providers

         16  also serve in parochial and private schools, and

         17  it's not clear from the report when he made a

         18  comparison to other cities if that included their

         19  services to other than public school students.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Okay, in the

         21  interest of time, we have to move on.

         22                 Can someone tell me, this 238 million

         23  that you spend on due process, can you give me some

         24  sense of what that money buys?

         25                 MR. BEST: Actually, I would say that
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          2  the -- categorizing that as due process money makes

          3  it sound as though it is -- and that's what the

          4  terminology of a court uses, makes it sound as

          5  though that's going towards hearings and lawyers and

          6  things like that, when in fact, that's not what the

          7  money is used for.

          8                 It's actually, if I can find -- I

          9  have a note, if you'll give me one second. Of that

         10  money, of the 238 million, I believe 96.6 million of

         11  that is for committees on special education and

         12  committees on preschool special education. And 172.2

         13  million is for school-based support teams, and --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: But is it to

         15  resolve disputes --

         16                 MR. BEST: No.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: -- Related to

         18  the provision of services?

         19                 MR. BEST: No. It's actually not the

         20  impartial hearing process. The due process aspects,

         21  what the report refers to as due process issues.

         22  Money is not actually specifically related to that.

         23  Linda can explain better than I what those

         24  expenditures are paying for.

         25                 If you would, Linda?
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          2                 MS. WERNIKOFF: Those expenditures are

          3  for the evaluation staff that are providing the

          4  evaluation of students. So, it's really not for the

          5  holding of impartial hearings.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I didn't say

          7  impartial hearings. I mean, the due process, he

          8  didn't say, Hehir didn't say the Department spends

          9  238 million for impartial hearings.

         10                 Due process costs, I understand, and

         11  I'm not a lawyer, and I'm not a special ed person,

         12  but I understand that to be about all of the rights

         13  and responsibilities that the parents have and the

         14  Department has to comply with Jose Pi or State regs

         15  or that's due process. Any of that.

         16                 MR. BEST: I mean, we're in a sort of

         17  terminology confusion here as a result of the way

         18  the report categorizes. The report has a chapter on

         19  due process. That chapter talks about, for the most

         20  part, the impartial hearing when there is a dispute

         21  about what the Department has done in an IEP let's

         22  say, or whether the service is being provided or

         23  appropriate, or whether we have to pay for services

         24  outside the school system and by a private provider.

         25  That is what that chapter talks about.
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          2                 Earlier in the report there is that

          3  pie chart that categorizes the money that we spend

          4  on special education, and one sliver of that, which

          5  is about seven percent translated from the numbers

          6  is, to the $238 million, is categorized as due

          7  process in that pie chart in a different section of

          8  the report. It is not, that money is not referring

          9  to the impartial hearing process.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I understand

         11  that but --

         12                 MR. BEST: And we have figured out

         13  what that $238 million is for, and what that $238

         14  million is for is essentially for the committees on

         15  special education and the committees on preschool

         16  education, and also the school-based support teams.

         17                 These are the people making

         18  determinations in the first instance about where

         19  students should be placed if they have disabilities.

         20                 So, I suppose one could categorize

         21  that as due process, you know, we can tell you

         22  exactly what it's paying for.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Well, why

         24  don't you get the Committee a breakdown of what the

         25  238 million is for very specifically with narrative
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          2  descriptions so that we can make -- I mean, it still

          3  seems to me that it's fair to call that due process.

          4  It's certainly not transportation, it's certainly

          5  not instruction. I don't know what else you call it,

          6  other than the machinery of complying with all -- I

          7  mean, it's spelled out.

          8                 MR. BEST: It's actually evaluation, I

          9  think a better term for it. It's about evaluating

         10  students about whether or not they're disabled, and

         11  if so, what they're entitled to, and what we have to

         12  provide in order to give them the best education.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Okay. Why

         14  don't you give me a spread sheet, an Excel spread

         15  sheet where I can see what exactly you're spending

         16  the money on, and you know, what I'm interested in

         17  is comparing that to other cities. Do other cities

         18  spend seven percent, whether it's evaluation or due

         19  process or whatever it is, that's a large chunk of

         20  money and part of our job is to make sure that that

         21  money is as well spent as possible.

         22                 A couple of other factual questions.

         23                 The 79,000 elementary school students

         24  who are classified as special ed; can you tell me

         25  approximately, Linda, when the sort of age spread of
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          2  identification -- all of those kids have IEPs,

          3  correct?

          4                 MS. WERNIKOFF: Correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: So, can you

          6  tell me, are they equally divided among the K

          7  through 5, that the same number of kindergartners

          8  have IEPs?

          9                 MS. WERNIKOFF: What I can do is, I

         10  don't have it here but I can certainly provide the

         11  members with a breakdown of the elementary school

         12  register by grade.

         13                 But I will tell you that over the

         14  last three years, there's been a large increase in

         15  the number of preschoolers transitioning to school

         16  age. We call them "Turning 5s." These children are

         17  coming from preschool to school age, so that there

         18  has been, at least in the last three years, a larger

         19  number of incoming kindergartners that were

         20  previously classified as students with disabilities

         21  during preschool and continue to need those

         22  services. Especially children who are classified

         23  with autism. But we could get you the breakdown by

         24  grade.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Well, let me
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          2  ask you this: Leaving those children aside, and I

          3  think you said there were 19,000 of those children,

          4  if I am remembering your information correct, that

          5  there were 19,000; is that possible, pre-k? Special

          6  ed students?

          7                 MS. WERNIKOFF: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  What I'm

          9  trying to figure out is, when the kids who are not

         10  special ed, when they arrive in kindergarten, on the

         11  first day of kindergarten, what does the curve look

         12  like for when they get identified?

         13                 Thirty months ago when I did the

         14  report, one of the most salient findings was that

         15  the largest number of kids were identified at the

         16  age of ten and 11. What I'm trying to figure out is

         17  if that's still the case?

         18                 MS. WERNIKOFF: I will get you

         19  information, a breakdown by grade of when children

         20  are first identified.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Okay.

         22                 And for the record, you know, we got

         23  your answers for the info request at 5:15 last

         24  night. We had to do a supplemental info request as a

         25  result of the special ed report and we were
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          2  promised, even though I was unhappy, we were

          3  promised that we would get it after the hearing, and

          4  I do want answers to all those questions, because we

          5  didn't have the special ed report until it was

          6  released, so we couldn't generate the questions for

          7  the press.  There is a second list, a supplemental

          8  list of questions, for anyone who is interested in

          9  it.

         10                 Let me ask about the data management,

         11  and that's my final question. You are proposing to

         12  spend approximately $40 million over the course of

         13  the next two years, and that is in large measure

         14  your response to the Hehir Report.

         15                 Eighty percent of that money, as I

         16  understand it, is being spent on data management.

         17                 Can you explain how you decided that

         18  you were going to spend 80 percent of that money on

         19  data management?

         20                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: I think one

         21  of the most pressing issues is for students who

         22  require services to have it as quickly as possible.

         23  But also in our discussions with people out in the

         24  field, and I'm sure that the Hehir Report also found

         25  this, is that where we seem to have the most issues
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          2  in giving the best services is in transitional

          3  grades, fifth grade going to sixth grade, eighth

          4  grade going to ninth grade. Because we are still

          5  largely a paper-driven system and that it becomes

          6  more and more important that the records follow

          7  students in ways that can be accessed even before

          8  the first day of school. So, by spending money on a

          9  data system, we can do very many things quickly.

         10                 First, we can ensure that students

         11  travel with their records and get them in a timely

         12  fashion, both the services and the records.

         13                 Secondly, when we need to do reports,

         14  and in many cases some of the exact questions that

         15  you're asking here right now, we can access it

         16  through a data-driven system, rather than picking up

         17  the phone and having to call people school-by-school

         18  or region-by-region.

         19                 We also need to be able to assess

         20  where we need, for example, special certified

         21  teachers, if we know once we have a data system

         22  where the kids are, who shows certain disabilities

         23  versus other systems.

         24                 So, having a data system will

         25  actually help us with instruction, will help us with
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          2  professional development, and most importantly, it

          3  will assure that kids get the services they need in

          4  the fastest way possible.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Can I ask, one

          6  of the criticisms of the Hehir Report was that the

          7  data entry is pretty lousy, and the OAG, Office of

          8  Auditor General, is that internal? Is that a DOE

          9  officer --

         10                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: So,

         12  internally, you found that your data entry was

         13  lousy; how is the new data system going to address

         14  the poor quality, garbage-in garbage-out problem?

         15                 MS. WERNIKOFF: One of the things,

         16  actually we have begun actually already updating the

         17  data system. One of the things that we heard from

         18  principals and from schools across the system is to

         19  help them have real time data, it will help them

         20  manage the system better. And what we found is that

         21  having this paper-driven manual data entry clerks

         22  take information from people on pieces of paper,

         23  then go to computers and try to input it, is a

         24  pretty antiquated way to do data entry.

         25                 So, what we are doing, and we
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          2  actually rolled it out this September for related

          3  service providers, for example, we've rolled out

          4  what's called an integrated voice response system.

          5  Very similar to when you call up a bank or a credit

          6  card, the related service providers call into a

          7  number any time they want, and they just speak in

          8  the names of the children that they started serving

          9  that day and overnight it goes into the system. The

         10  principal in the morning can look and see right on

         11  line how many of the students are receiving the

         12  various different services.

         13                 We want to have real time data so

         14  that we can hold the system accountable, and just as

         15  important know where we have to intervene if there

         16  are issues.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Can I ask you,

         18  I mean, look, it sounds wonderful, and yes, the

         19  technology has improved, but how much did the cap

         20  system cost; does anyone know? Linda, you probably

         21  were around long enough to -- we need Burt Sachs.

         22  Where is he when you need him?

         23                 MS. WERNIKOFF: Actually the Cap

         24  system began in May of 1984, and at that time it

         25  probably was a pretty cutting edge system, and since
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          2  that time it has been built upon and built upon to

          3  try to hold all the data it needs, but at this point

          4  it's a pretty antiquated system.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Do you have

          6  any idea how much it cost?

          7                 MS. WERNIKOFF: Over the 20 years? No.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Okay. I mean,

          9  there is a danger with this stuff that, you know,

         10  we'll keep spending 90 percent of our money on

         11  upgrades. I find that it's sort of an ongoing

         12  process and that you can't just get it right once

         13  and we'll never have any new additional monies for

         14  actually teaching kids.

         15                 MS. WERNIKOFF: Madam Chair, let me

         16  clarify. We're not upgrading the Cap system --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: No, I

         18  understand. Your new web based --

         19                 MS. WERNIKOFF: Replacement of the

         20  system, parts of it, it's on-line.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: But won't it

         22  be outdated in three to five years?

         23                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: Let me just

         24  say that the Cap system was for 20 years, I'm

         25  assuming that the new system will actually serve its
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          2  use over a period of time.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I am dismayed

          4  that you don't know how much it costs because this

          5  is one of the things where it's not like you laid

          6  out money once, you kept updating it. You kept

          7  paying for fixes that presumably didn't get you

          8  where you wanted to go.

          9                 My experience in government, that

         10  things that start off costing 30 million even before

         11  they're done cost 60, and then when you have to

         12  improve them, then that costs you another 30, and

         13  before you know it -- and, again, I'm not saying

         14  it's not worthwhile. Obviously you have to be able

         15  to do queries, you have to be able to know in real

         16  time. One of the criticisms of the report is that

         17  kids show up at schools and nobody has any record of

         18  what their kind of constellation of educational

         19  challenges are, and it's very hard to educate kids.

         20                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: I think if

         21  I had to make a choice between doing something that

         22  I think is going to be productive for the kids in

         23  getting services quickly and be able to give us

         24  data, I'd go this way. Because otherwise I'd be

         25  sitting here defending why we're not upgrading a Cap
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          2  system that we know right now doesn't work.

          3                 So, I think between the two choices,

          4  this is the choice I would make.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Well, clearly

          6  you've made it. You've said that it's 40 million and

          7  you're going to spend 38 million, and you're going

          8  to spend 30 of it, but that leaves 8 million divided

          9  by 154,000 kids, I don't know, that seems like,

         10  what, $400 a kid, which doesn't buy you very much.

         11                 So, in any case, let me turn to

         12  Council Member Recchia, who I know had a question or

         13  a comment.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Yes, good

         15  morning.

         16                 First I want to start off by saying

         17  that we are definitely headed in the right

         18  direction. And I want to thank Deputy Chancellor

         19  Carmen Farina and, of course, Linda, you're always

         20  there.

         21                 But there's a few issues that I have

         22  problems with. Just going on the issue about

         23  impartial hearings, why aren't more of these cases

         24  being resolved without doing impartials?

         25                 MR. BEST: There are a number of
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          2  reasons why we've had issues in terms of resolving

          3  them, and we're hoping that the new law, the 2004

          4  amendments to the IDEA will help us to resolve more

          5  cases more quickly.

          6                 One thing that it does is it provides

          7  a mandatory 30-day period for essentially

          8  negotiating between the school system and the parent

          9  to try to come to an accommodation, and there's

         10  mediation that would be binding on the parties that

         11  is mandated during that period, which we're hoping

         12  will reduce the number. We're going to work with the

         13  regions to try to encourage that to make sure that

         14  we work with parents to provide solutions so that

         15  both the system and the parents are satisfied with

         16  the service and we're going to provide and avoid

         17  hearings. So, I think that's going to help to drive

         18  the numbers of hearings down.

         19                 We've also, as the report indicates,

         20  started hiring attorneys. We have hired a number of

         21  attorneys to handle cases at the impartial hearing

         22  stage if they go to hearing so that we can litigate

         23  more effectively the ones that should really never

         24  get to hearing in the first place where the law has

         25  been misinterpreted, so that we can really start the
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          2  system focusing on the cases that where there's

          3  really issues that have to be resolved.

          4                 I think those initiatives will help

          5  us a lot.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: But here is

          7  my question: Who has the final say? Is it the

          8  Department of Ed or the attorneys?

          9                 MR. BEST: Final say over what

         10  services are going to be provided?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Yes.

         12                 Let's say if their decree becomes

         13  resolved, all right, and the Department of Ed works

         14  something out with the parents, and then Department

         15  of Ed works out the services the child receive, and

         16  then they bring it over to the attorney, does the

         17  attorney have the right to say no?

         18                 MR. BEST: Well, if they go to

         19  mediation under the new law --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: This is

         21  before mediation.

         22                 MR. BEST: Well, you know, you'll get

         23  an IEP for a student. If the parent is dissatisfied

         24  with the IEP and believe that there are other

         25  services that should be provided or there's been a
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          2  misclassification or whatever --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: No, no. It's

          4  very simple. If the Department of Ed and the parent

          5  and their attorney work out all the problems, and

          6  they agree on the services, okay? And they bring it

          7  to the attorney; does the attorney have the right to

          8  say no?

          9                 MR. BEST: Well, if the parents and

         10  the DOE agree on it then there's no need for a

         11  hearing and there won't be any further, there won't

         12  be any change in the service being provided. So, I'd

         13  say no.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Well, because

         15  I have a little boy by the name is Sean Fisher who

         16  is in a wheelchair, on a respirator, and I've been

         17  fighting for this little boy since I've been

         18  elected. And I'm going to tell you something, this

         19  little boy, I fight for his services, and here was a

         20  perfect example what I mean by we in government, not

         21  helping this parent who puts her son on a bus every

         22  day in a wheelchair, the respirator, it's

         23  heartbreaking. And to see this little boy have to be

         24  fighting, and the Department of Ed agrees that he

         25  should get services, the lawyer won't agree to it,
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          2  and they have to go to an impartial, and they're

          3  appealing it and appealing it and delayed, and you

          4  want to know who is suffering? It is the child. When

          5  are we going to stop this?

          6                 MR. BEST: Well, we'd be happy to look

          7  at the specifics of that for you, Councilman.

          8                 You know, it's hard to respond to it

          9  without knowing exactly what happened in that case,

         10  but we're happy to talk to you about it.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: I did some

         12  investigation work on this, and it's many more cases

         13  like this that we have to stop. That's why I think

         14  something has to be done. That's why I'm bringing it

         15  to your attention, because it's heart-breaking, all

         16  right?

         17                 I'll move on with my questions.

         18                 The next question is early

         19  intervention. We still have a problem when children

         20  go from a state early intervention into Department

         21  of Ed Services. Why is there still a delay?

         22                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: Are you

         23  talking about when children transition from at three

         24  years old to preschool?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Yes.
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          2                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: Actually

          3  we've worked very closely with early intervention so

          4  that there should not be delays. What we've tried to

          5  do is work and do projections of how many students

          6  will be coming into early intervention so that

          7  together with the State Education Department we

          8  ensure that there are enough programs to serve all

          9  those youngsters that will be turning three.

         10                 The other thing that we have come up

         11  with is that many children can stay in early

         12  intervention and not transition if there is not a

         13  service available for them within the preschool

         14  world.

         15                 And we try to work very closely with

         16  parents and early intervention so that parents know

         17  their rights to be able to remain where they are and

         18  not have to transition until certain points of the

         19  year.

         20                 I think that sometimes parents

         21  thought that they had to leave early intervention.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Well, the

         23  problem is, it's just not the parents have to leave.

         24  I'll give you an example.

         25                 If the child has a therapist who is
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          2  getting paid by early intervention, then they're not

          3  accredited or able to work with the Department of

          4  Ed, okay? So now there's a lap in services. Who is

          5  going to pay?

          6                 MS. WERNIKOFF: Let me say, that's

          7  really not an issue of a lapse in service. That's

          8  really an issue where the parent wants to maintain a

          9  particular provider. And while the entitlement is to

         10  the service, it is not necessarily to a particular

         11  provider. And quite frankly, being a speech

         12  therapist myself, I will tell you that sometimes

         13  it's actually not a very good thing for a child to

         14  stay with a provider for an extended period of time,

         15  because sometimes you become too comfortable and you

         16  do not, or the child does not progress.

         17                 I think there are issues about

         18  wanting to keep a particular provider --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: No. I am

         20  telling you, this is what my experience was. This is

         21  me, Domenic M. Recchia, Jr., my child was getting

         22  services. I had to stop for months, and I'm a City

         23  Council member. Before I got services, it was not

         24  until November. Why does this happen?

         25                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: I think you
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          2  will find that in the last year and a half that that

          3  lag of services is not happening. And if it is, all

          4  you need is to get someone, including yourself, to

          5  e-mail Linda or myself, and I will tell you that

          6  every time I get letters from parents and we get

          7  about five a month, we get on it right away and we

          8  make sure the service is provided.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: What I'm

         10  saying is, why do they have to come to elected

         11  officials? Why do they have to go to the

         12  Chancellor's Office? We have to do a better job at

         13  this.

         14                 And the information, where is

         15  information? Because in June the parents are told to

         16  start going to the districts.

         17                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: We have

         18  fairs for the turning five students. We had 30 of

         19  them this year.

         20                 We have a guide book. We also have a

         21  book that tells you on line exactly who you go to,

         22  and every regional office in the City of New York

         23  has a Committee on Special Education and people

         24  there who can answer their questions.

         25                 But sometimes in the City of New
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          2  York, as only New York City can do, people prefer to

          3  go right to the top when they have a question, and

          4  we're happy to provide the answers at that level as

          5  well.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: All right.

          7                 And the parochial schools and the

          8  private schools and the Yeshivas, when they get

          9  services and they need services.

         10                 Lately what's been happening is that

         11  students have been told that they have to go to a

         12  public school to get the services.

         13                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: For the

         14  provision of actual services?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Right. There

         16  are children in Yeshivas and parochial schools that

         17  need services and are being told you have to go to

         18  this public school.

         19                 How is the parent who chooses to send

         20  their child to a Yeshiva or parochial school,

         21  supposed to get the services? And because this is

         22  happening, this happened to me several times, and no

         23  one -- the parent calls up the region, they're never

         24  told that they can get an outside provider. All

         25  they're told is they have to go to this public
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          2  school.

          3                 MS. WERNIKOFF: Not been my

          4  experience. I can tell you that we've served

          5  thousands of parochial school children, both at

          6  parochial schools, at home, and at providers' places

          7  of business, so that has not been our experience.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Okay, I'm

          9  just bringing you these problems that come to me,

         10  that come to my district office. Because we are a

         11  great advocate for children with special needs.

         12                 And the last I'm going to leave you

         13  with is collaborative learning. And we had an

         14  incident that's very disturbing to me in a school,

         15  where we had a collaborative learning class where it

         16  was a modeled class, and they brought teachers from

         17  all over the region to see how well this

         18  collaborative learning was. And because of the next

         19  year, there was only four kids and in another school

         20  there was five kids, they dismantled this program in

         21  a school where it was a model program, and told

         22  these four kids they have to go to another building.

         23                 What's more important, getting

         24  effective teachers that are successful? Or

         25  accommodating five kids?
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          2                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: I

          3  absolutely agree with you. And one of the things

          4  that we've asked regional superintendents to do, as

          5  well as principals, is to plan ahead of time.

          6                 The data system will also help us

          7  with that information, because rather than wait til

          8  September to see how many kids we have to justify a

          9  CTT class, we can actually plan for the spring ahead

         10  of time.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: No. But what

         12  I'm saying here is, you have a successful program.

         13  You have two wonderful teachers.

         14                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: I agree

         15  with you and we should keep it.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: The parents

         17  who are going to this other building now with these

         18  nine children are coming to me and saying, Domenic,

         19  our children, it's nothing like the program was last

         20  year.

         21                 I said, who is to blame?

         22                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: Again,

         23  speaking in a vacuum I can't help you. If you give

         24  me the name of the school, I'll do some research on

         25  it.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: I brought it

          3  to the attention of DOE and nothing was done.

          4                 I mean, to me, having a successful

          5  program, and having a good teacher, and two teachers

          6  that work together, is more important than

          7  destroying a program that was a model program, and

          8  that's what happens.

          9                 I'm just bringing you problems with

         10  special needs that happen throughout New York City,

         11  because my heart is with these children, and these

         12  problems still exist. Yes, we're making progress,

         13  but these are areas I think that have to be

         14  addressed.

         15                 MS. WERNIKOFF: Just also let me add

         16  this one thing that we did this year that would also

         17  make that situation not happen again, is that we

         18  have funded schools for classes up front, knowing

         19  that they will start under-registered and allow

         20  those classes to grow to full register during the

         21  course of the year, so that if you have five

         22  youngsters who were there, we know that during the

         23  course of the school year, there may be another four

         24  youngsters who were evaluated.

         25                 But if you send us the name of the
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          2  school, we'll look into that, but I think by funding

          3  classes up front, we've already addressed that

          4  issue.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: We're not

          7  quite done yet, I'm sorry.

          8                 If the clerk can announce the vote,

          9  we're going to leave the record open for other

         10  members of the Committee.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: The vote stands

         12  at eight in the affirmative, one in the negative,

         13  and no abstentions, and the record is still open.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Council Member

         15  Liu and then Council Member Brewer.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you very

         17  much, Madam Chair. And I want to thank you for

         18  holding this hearing and beg your forgiveness in my

         19  arriving at this hearing late.

         20                 Thank you very much, Deputy

         21  Chancellor for joining us in this hearing. If I ask

         22  a question that has already been addressed, then

         23  feel free to smack me down and I will get it from

         24  the records.

         25                 My question has to do with, it's kind
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          2  of like on the opposite spectrum of Council Member

          3  Recchia's questions. They have to do with the

          4  students who are not clearly in need of special

          5  education, but for whatever reasons are placed in

          6  special education.

          7                 I remember a hearing from a couple of

          8  years ago where we addressed the issue of whether or

          9  not students who are placed in special education

         10  ever kind of graduate from the special education

         11  system.

         12                 Do we have better information about

         13  the rates at which students in special education are

         14  able to be taken out of special education and put in

         15  the normal curriculum? Or does that not happen?

         16                 MS. WERNIKOFF: Well, I think you're

         17  talking about decertification, the number of

         18  youngsters who go through special ed and then are

         19  decertified back to general education?

         20                 I think last year we had

         21  approximately 5,000 students who were decertified

         22  from special education and returned full time to

         23  general education.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: So, 5,000

         25  students during school, or in special education
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          2  during the school year who are then decertified and

          3  placed into the regular, the normal curriculum?

          4                 MS. WERNIKOFF: All children are

          5  following the same curriculum, but it's those

          6  children that have progressed enough that no longer

          7  need special education supports are then decertified

          8  full time to general education, with no additional

          9  special ed support.

         10                 Again, this is, one of the things

         11  about decertification is, parents must agree to

         12  decertification. So, while the teachers and the

         13  school staff may agree that the child has progressed

         14  enough where they no longer need these special ed

         15  supports, parents must agree to this decision, as

         16  well.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: I suppose there

         18  wouldn't be a goal for how many kids we decertify,

         19  right? That's a question of their own abilities?

         20                 MS. WERNIKOFF: Exactly.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Okay. And that's

         22  5,000 out of roughly 120,000?

         23                 MS. WERNIKOFF: A hundred and

         24  fifty-thousand.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: A hundred and
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          2  fifty-thousand kids who are in special education.

          3                 MS. WERNIKOFF: Correct.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: And, so, it's

          5  agreed upon by -- it's recommended by the school and

          6  agreed to by the parents?

          7                 MS. WERNIKOFF: Correct.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: What about

          9  parents who think that their children should be

         10  decertified?

         11                 MS. WERNIKOFF: Parents can ask for a

         12  reevaluation at any time during the school year, for

         13  the IEP team which is comprised of the parent, the

         14  students, teachers and other service providers to

         15  say I believe my child has progressed enough and I

         16  believe my child no longer needs special ed support.

         17  And it is a team decision.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Okay, thank you.

         19  That's very helpful.

         20                 And then just one other quick

         21  question. In all the other reorganization, we try to

         22  keep kids together in the same school if they're

         23  within a reasonable number of years apart, like two

         24  years apart or three years apart, we try to keep

         25  them in the same school, but it's more difficult
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          2  when one of the kids is a special education child,

          3  because depending on the kind of special education,

          4  they may be placed in a different school.

          5                 Is there any effort to keep those

          6  kids together? Or do they just -- does the child who

          7  is not on special education go get assigned to a

          8  school based on the zoning?

          9                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: This year

         10  we made a major effort to start moving to home zone

         11  schooling, and to ensure that students wherever

         12  possible could actually stay in their neighborhood

         13  schools, that are listed for special ed services.

         14                 So, I think over the next few years

         15  you're going to see more services in all schools and

         16  more students being able to do what they would do -

         17  stay in their own neighborhoods, have play dates and

         18  all of the things that are very important to

         19  neighborhood schools.

         20                 So that certainly is, there were

         21  certain parts of this City where there was actually

         22  a majority of schools with no special ed programs

         23  whatsoever, and they were only in maybe two or three

         24  schools. This year we've made a major effort to

         25  ensure that all schools have some services so
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          2  parents can stay within their own home zone school.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: And I just want

          4  to apprise you of a situation that is similar, but

          5  it's actually the mirror situation, which is that I

          6  had a couple of cases and fortunately they were

          7  resolved, so I want to thank the Department for

          8  taking care of that.

          9                 We had a couple of kids whose

         10  siblings were special education, so they actually

         11  were not able to go to their zoned school, but it

         12  was just impossible for the mom to take care of both

         13  kids. The kid that was not on special education was

         14  originally going to the same school where his

         15  special education brother was attending, but then

         16  this year was forced initially to go back to the

         17  zone school. And, so, I just wanted to make sure

         18  that you were aware of that situation. It's not

         19  always the finding the local school for the special

         20  education child but allowing the sibling of the

         21  special education child to go to the same school.

         22                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: The sibling

         23  variance allows for parents who want to move one of

         24  the sibling to a school where the other student is,

         25  as long as there is space available in that school
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          2  to apply for that variance. So, if there's an issue

          3  with that, just let us know and we'll ensure that

          4  that happens.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you.

          6                 Thank you very much, Madam Chair, for

          7  holding this hearing.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Council Member

          9  Brewer.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

         11  much.

         12                 I just want to ask if this new data

         13  center, data management system will help. I know we

         14  were successful with Brandeis high school student

         15  who was living in The Regent. Obviously that is a

         16  homeless services facility. And long story short,

         17  last year they had an IEP which I guess the school

         18  and the parent didn't agree on. The parent wanted

         19  the student to return to Brandeis. Brandeis Grade

         20  School, I live Dr. Misineo (phonetic), but she

         21  didn't want him.

         22                 Long story short, we convinced, with

         23  good staff input, just like my colleagues, we worked

         24  hard and realized it was a new IEP, et cetera, and

         25  he's now at Brandeis.
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          2                 But what I ask is, the lack of

          3  conversation and information sharing, we had a lot

          4  of support from the Volunteers of America social

          5  worker at the Regent, who had no information until

          6  we brought it to their attention.

          7                 My guess is, and the Chair would know

          8  better, is that at some of these homeless shelters,

          9  you will find young people with IEPs. So, my

         10  question is, when you have in the regent situation,

         11  there are about, I don't know, 500 kids in that

         12  building, and all of them challenged with this kind

         13  of situation.

         14                 So, I assume that this new real time

         15  would both be helpful to the social work at the

         16  facility, the school, et cetera; is that correct?

         17                 In other words, this got lost a

         18  little bit because of lack of data?

         19                 MS. WERNIKOFF: You're absolutely

         20  correct, and the core of the new system will be an

         21  on-line IEP. So any time you change a child's IEP,

         22  you're changing it on line and it will automatically

         23  be available to all individuals who serve that

         24  child.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Because
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          2  obviously in this case it was upgraded, he was

          3  eligible for Brandeis, but we had to fight.

          4                 MS. WERNIKOFF: Exactly.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay, the

          6  other question I have is, many teachers and parents

          7  are more than willing to have a class that is what I

          8  would call as inclusionary as possible, particularly

          9  in my district on the west side. But my question is,

         10  maybe I should know this, but there is a point at

         11  which that community of parents who have children

         12  who are, as we call them temporarily abled and then

         13  those who are at this point sometimes temporarily

         14  disabled, all working together.

         15                 But there's a point at which there's

         16  not enough support for those who are disabled who

         17  have an IEP. And that is a constant cry. It's a

         18  quiet cry, because everybody is trying to do their

         19  share. But sometimes, as my colleague said, it

         20  doesn't happen until November or October or

         21  sometimes there's just not enough of pull-out,

         22  whatever it's called, there's not enough support,

         23  and in many cases these are not Title 1 schools, so

         24  you don't have that kind of support.

         25                 I'm just wondering, in this
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          2  discussion of funding and programs, et cetera, how

          3  do we get more support, because then you would have

          4  more inclusion, all the things would go better. I

          5  know that's kind of where we're at. It's just not

          6  happening, very quietly, it's not happening.

          7                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: I think one

          8  of the things that I said in my original statement

          9  is that because this is so new in terms of being

         10  under the principal direction, that one of the first

         11  groups of people that we had to really do a lot of

         12  retraining and training were the principals.

         13                 What we're also finding now is that

         14  bringing parents to parent workshops to explain what

         15  it would look like, debuke some of the myths that

         16  people have, because as many as some parents are

         17  happy, so parents are not happy to have their kids

         18  in an inclusion class or a CTT class. So, your

         19  region and one other in the City are places where

         20  we're actually going and setting teams and

         21  explaining what we mean by these classes and

         22  informing parents more completely.

         23                 And I think the after support comes

         24  that just the two teachers in the classroom are not

         25  enough. So that many of those kids need, they still

                                                            98

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  need the reading specialist and so forth.

          3                 So, those are the things we're

          4  looking at. We are funding them to get those

          5  supports, but also retraining the services in those

          6  schools, particularly non-Title 1 schools.

          7                 So, that is on our radar screen, but

          8  it's going.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: What's the

         10  timing on that radar screen?

         11                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: I would

         12  like to think that by the end of this year that

         13  certainly most --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: End of this

         15  calendar or fiscal?

         16                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: I always

         17  think in school years.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay. I'm

         19  trying to push you.

         20                 MS. WERNIKOFF: I would just say, one

         21  of the things that we did this year based on

         22  principal input was collaborative team teaching

         23  classes were discretely funded both for both

         24  teachers and the coverage as they needed up front

         25  are based on what we believe were going to be the
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          2  need for this coming school year so they got the

          3  budget in May up front for September, even though

          4  they didn't have sufficient numbers of kids yet for

          5  those classes, so we think that will be very helpful

          6  in building the capacity of the region to open more

          7  classes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I just think

          9  you really need an honest ongoing dialogue, because

         10  what might be good for one inclusionary situation or

         11  CTT class is not good for another, and I really want

         12  to force you to think about the non-Title 1 schools

         13  where there is nobody else there except sometimes

         14  some of your special education staff and for those

         15  who are quote/unquote mainstreamed into general ed,

         16  they still need services.

         17                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: And also

         18  keep in mind that one of the things that is really

         19  important when we put together CTT and inclusionary

         20  classes, that it's the right ratio of kids, and that

         21  the kids, even the ones with IEPs, have the

         22  appropriate IEPs, because not all disability

         23  students belong in those classes.

         24                 So, that becomes a training mechanism

         25  that we're going through, and we're looking at it
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          2  very, very carefully.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: And just

          4  finally the eyeglasses and the hearing; is that a

          5  pilot program Citywide? What is the status with

          6  young people? Dennis Walcott, my twin, were born the

          7  same day, the same minute, the same second,

          8  indicates that there are now programs for young

          9  people to get eyeglasses and any kind of hearing

         10  test at a very early age; do you know anything about

         11  that program?

         12                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: That would

         13  be under Dr. Platt.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

         15                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR FARINA: And if you

         16  want, I can get the information.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Well, I'm just

         18  saying that would be helpful, in terms of, again,

         19  back to the issue of everybody trying to be at the

         20  same place at the same time, level the playing

         21  field. I'm not clear if that's Citywide or just

         22  local.

         23                 Thank you very much. Thank you, Madam

         24  Chair.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you.
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          2                 I want to make sure to thank the

          3  Deputy Chancellor and Linda Wernikoff and Michael

          4  Best. My math was inaccurate. The $38 million that

          5  you're going to spend over two years, if 30 of it

          6  goes to data management, there would be 8 million

          7  left, which means it would be $52 per kid left for

          8  additional monies.

          9                 Just to remind the Department, if we

         10  could get answers to the questions that we sent on

         11  Monday, as soon as possible, that would be helpful,

         12  and I'd also like to remind the Department that we

         13  would like to see, get an answer to the question of

         14  whether the Jose Pi, I don't know what exactly the

         15  term, the consent decree could be put on the website

         16  so that anyone who is interested could have access

         17  to it.

         18                 Thank you very, very much. We're now

         19  going to hear from Jill Levy from the Principals,

         20  the President of the Principals' Union.

         21                 Jill. President Levy, you have

         22  testified many times before this Committee on many

         23  subjects, but I know that you are particularly

         24  passionate and knowledgeable about special ed and

         25  we're delighted that you're here this morning.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 MS. LEVY: Thank you, Madam Chairman

          4  -- Chairperson, indeed.

          5                 I'm always happy to be here. I'm

          6  unhappy that I'm here, you know, talking about

          7  special education again and again and again in the

          8  same way. So, I have a brief statement.

          9                 We are doing a -- at the Council of

         10  School Supervisors and Administrators, we are doing

         11  an in-house study based upon the experiences of all

         12  of our members, our principals, our assistant

         13  principals, our supervisors, our EAs, all of them.

         14  And what we are turning up, in an honest discussion

         15  without fear, in a house where people can feel

         16  comfortable sharing their experiences, is really

         17  disturbing.

         18                 So, let me read my statement, and

         19  then if you have some questions that I can answer, I

         20  will. And if not, I promise you that you will get

         21  the full report from us as soon as we are finished

         22  with it.

         23                 We thank you for providing us with

         24  this opportunity. And as you stated, it's one that I

         25  am particularly passionate about, having spent

                                                            103

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  almost my entire school career and personal life

          3  advocating for people and children with special

          4  needs.

          5                 I'm not an expert in every area, but

          6  I know something about the subject.

          7                 We were very outspoken at the

          8  beginning about warning the Department of Education

          9  about the methods of reform and the changes they

         10  were making to the system, particularly the speed

         11  and the breath of the implementation of their

         12  reforms.

         13                 We were also very outspoken when the,

         14  I call it the Board of Education, because that's

         15  it's legal name, when they removed the expertise

         16  from our schools, particularly in the form of

         17  special education supervisors.

         18                 And they turned over the

         19  responsibility to principals and assistant

         20  principals who clearly did not have the expertise in

         21  special education and then hired special education

         22  experts at the regional office who were not and

         23  should not be by the nature of their positions in

         24  the schools directly training, retraining,

         25  constantly upgrading the quality of education and
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          2  dealing with issues of compliance, and more

          3  importantly, advocating for the students, advocating

          4  for the needs of students, and that's what was

          5  removed from the system. Very important.

          6                 These students are among the most

          7  fragile students that we have, and everybody knows

          8  that you need quality and expertise for all

          9  students, but specific expertise for some students.

         10  That is sorely missing.

         11                 In the past our principals depended

         12  upon our special education supervisors. They

         13  misused, of course not the principals, but the

         14  system misused the role so that special education

         15  supervisors were apparently compliance monitors,

         16  rather than using their skill and training in

         17  instruction in supporting principals and assistant

         18  principals and teachers, and parents in the

         19  environment of the school. But they were there to

         20  make sure students got their services.

         21                 Despite the optimism displayed by

         22  this Department of Education, our members paint an

         23  entirely different picture of what is working and

         24  what is not. And not surprisingly, their point of

         25  view is echoed by the Hehir Report which highlights
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          2  the Department's ill-informed and mismanaged

          3  policies, procedures and practices, albeit that this

          4  Administration has always been form over substance

          5  and never really about children first, especially

          6  when it comes to our children with special needs.

          7                 Now the Department plans on spending

          8  $38 million more to cover their tracks. Now they

          9  have said, at the beginning you heard the term "this

         10  is a work-in-progress." Now you hear the term,

         11  "well, we're heading in the right direction."

         12                 Well, while we're working to make

         13  progress, and while we're heading in the right

         14  direction, there are tens of thousands of students

         15  with special needs who have not and are not getting

         16  the services that they need to have. They're not

         17  getting the instruction they need to have, they're

         18  not getting the quality and expertise they need to

         19  have, and in spite of all the data which the

         20  Department of Education controls, so when you

         21  control the data, you get the outcomes that you want

         22  to get, I know that's a hard line to take, but I

         23  believe that.

         24                 Anyway, we are gathering our own

         25  information. Among the topics that we will be
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          2  addressing will be budgeting, personnel

          3  responsibilities, inclusion classes, instruction

          4  services and compliance.

          5                 I want to take a moment just to talk

          6  about inclusion classes, a term that I personally as

          7  a parent, and as an educator and as an administrator

          8  and supervisor detest.

          9                 There was a time when you took a

         10  bunch of students with special needs, five, six,,

         11  ten, didn't matter, and we called it

         12  "mainstreaming," and we put them in with a bunch of

         13  students in a classroom who didn't have those same

         14  special needs, and we were told by the feds and the

         15  State Education Department that that was illegal,

         16  that mainstreaming and inclusion, have to be done on

         17  an individual basis, which doesn't mean that you

         18  have to have three, or four or five youngsters with

         19  special needs in a classroom. You have to have one

         20  student who needs to be included in a classroom, and

         21  that is enough.

         22                 And by developing this concept of

         23  inclusion classes, makes me think about holding pens

         24  for students with special needs. So there's a

         25  special ed teacher and there's a regular teacher.
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          2  So, the special ed teacher we find more likely is

          3  sitting with the group of special education

          4  students, and the general education teacher is then

          5  addressing the needs of the general education class.

          6                 This is not inclusion. It was not

          7  what was meant to be inclusion. Never was. But when

          8  you have a bunch of neophytes who know nothing about

          9  special needs, and don't care about the law, just

         10  barrel ahead putting form over substance, they come

         11  up with inclusion classes. Why? Because it's

         12  probably budgetarily better. Doesn't meet the needs

         13  of kids, but it's a better budget because now we

         14  have four kids sitting in the classroom instead of

         15  one.

         16                 It is a ridiculous, it's a ridiculous

         17  concept, it just doesn't get to me. I have a child

         18  in my school that needs to be included in a general

         19  education class, that child goes into a general

         20  education class and gets the services in that

         21  classroom that that child needs to have to support

         22  that youngster.

         23                 That child may not have two, three or

         24  four other special needs children in that classroom.

         25  It is not necessary, and it is foolish to do it that
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          2  way, except if you're trying to save money or if you

          3  don't know anything about children and children's

          4  needs or the law, or you just ignore the law.

          5                 Anyway, I'm going to close at this

          6  point, I think you see it coming.

          7                 We know that our children are not

          8  getting what they need to have. We know that our

          9  principals are telling us that they are desperate.

         10  They don't feel qualified, they don't feel competent

         11  about going into a classroom and determining whether

         12  or not the strategies that the special education

         13  teacher are using are in fact the strategies that

         14  should be used for individual children.

         15                 They don't know enough about behavior

         16  management to ascertain whether it is a function of

         17  the instruction in the classroom, or function of the

         18  child's disability and other needs to address that.

         19  They are desperate for help. The burden has fallen

         20  on them and the expertise has not followed their

         21  burden, and assistant principals who are there, some

         22  of whom have the special education background, you

         23  will find in those situations our children do

         24  better, our principals feel better, our teachers

         25  feel better about getting what they need to get from
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          2  the Administration to carry on.

          3                 We need people who could read

          4  evaluations. We need supervision of psychologists.

          5  Do you know that psychologists in this City and

          6  social workers by and large go without any quality

          7  supervision whatsoever.

          8                 Those people have been removed from

          9  service. Their skills and expertise are not needed

         10  anymore. So, who's training psychologists and social

         11  workers? Who? And who is overseeing the quality of

         12  the work that social workers and psychologists are

         13  doing in the field? Who? The principal?

         14                 Let me tell you something, I'm a

         15  special educator. I wouldn't dare try to go in and

         16  evaluate how well my psychologist or my social

         17  worker was doing in quality services to children. I

         18  could do it in administration, but in no other way.

         19                 So, there are a lot of things that

         20  have not been said that need to be said. We hope we

         21  can bring that to you at a later date.

         22                 We thank you for these hearings. Our

         23  children deserve better. All of our children deserve

         24  better, and we know that they can get better. Thank

         25  you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you very

          3  much, President Levy. I appreciate in particular

          4  your raising one of the issues that we didn't get to

          5  in the Hehir Report which is critical of the

          6  Department in terms of its not addressing behavioral

          7  issues and not having any mechanism really to

          8  address that.

          9                 I guess I wanted to ask you sort of a

         10  big picture question. You know, the Hehir report is

         11  very critical of the Department of Education and

         12  they paid for it and commissioned it and so forth,

         13  and one of their biggest criticisms is that -- I

         14  mean, they have lots of criticisms about

         15  implementation and kids falling through the cracks

         16  and supervision and all of that. But one of their

         17  big criticisms is that the medical model is a flawed

         18  model, and as evidence that the medical model is

         19  fully in place is that the psychologist heads the

         20  special ed, I guess they're not called support teams

         21  anymore, whatever they're called, I can't remember

         22  the nomenclature; do you agree with those criticisms

         23  that the medical model is problematic?

         24                 And concomitantly, do you believe

         25  that structurally the psychologist should be the
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          2  person to head the team?

          3                 MS. LEVY: I think one has to know the

          4  background of the people who write reports and I

          5  know that Tom Hehir believes very strongly, I've

          6  known him for a number of years, that the medical

          7  model caused more problems than it actually

          8  addressed.

          9                 I think there is a place in the

         10  evaluation of children where one looks towards

         11  medical -- when you evaluate a child or anybody

         12  else, you evaluate the whole person, so you can't

         13  segment that out.

         14                 The psychological report of a

         15  youngster, if in fact it is done properly and if, in

         16  fact, the people who are providing services can read

         17  that report, interpret it and understand it, and

         18  interpret it for teachers, is a very important

         19  report. So is the social work intake report,

         20  extremely critical to the whole picture of the

         21  child, as well as what we get out of our educational

         22  testing.

         23                 So, medical model meant to me placing

         24  youngsters by disability, having a disability that

         25  was more in line with a medical model of disability,
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          2  and placing youngsters in classrooms by disability.

          3                 So, I don't quite know what that

          4  means. And as to who heads the team? I don't care

          5  who heads the team, as long as that person has an

          6  understanding of how to put all the pieces together

          7  when those pieces come in and make the determination

          8  about that person, that youngster, and what that

          9  youngster truly needs in terms of class size,

         10  instruction, resources and services.

         11                 I don't really care who heads the

         12  team, but that person has to be accountable.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: The report

         14  seemed to indicate that social workers, you know,

         15  may have skills at getting at the behavioral origins

         16  of problems and they're sort of getting short shrift

         17  in this medical model. I don't know if it's true or

         18  not, but I was just curious.

         19                 One other question I have of you, and

         20  I know Ernie Logan is here and we very much

         21  appreciate your testimony when we had our Galaxy

         22  budget hearing and all the work you did to assist

         23  the Committee in preparing for that, one of the

         24  claims that was made at that hearing and has been

         25  made subsequently, is that the DOE says it has fixed
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          2  the special ed budgeting so that changes in

          3  enrollment do not impact the rest of the school; is

          4  that so?

          5                 MR. LOGAN: (Not identified for the

          6  record.) Well, at the present time they've changed

          7  the way they're funding special education so that we

          8  now have classes, the money is not traveling with

          9  the child.

         10                 It's kind of early. Well, we'll have

         11  to wait til October 31st and look and see as we

         12  start to do the enrollment figures and see exactly

         13  how it falls out. It might be a little too early

         14  this year to see if it's making any sense.

         15                 Remember, many of our problems

         16  generated November and December last year after they

         17  had already set the class registers and I suppose

         18  they had given out all the money.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Could you

         20  explain a little bit for the public what those

         21  problems were?

         22                 MR. LOGAN: Well, in some cases

         23  students arrived at schools and yet there was no

         24  money to either have a class or to even hire a

         25  teacher for particular students. And when the

                                                            114

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  principal approached the LIS, they were told that I

          3  don't have any control over the budget, talk to the

          4  ROC, and the ROC would say, well, I didn't have any

          5  money. The money that was there was already at the

          6  school. There was no additional money. And you know

          7  we went back to Katherine Grimm and raised the

          8  issue, is that somehow the Board has to hold back,

          9  because you never know what students are coming in

         10  to assist them from outside of the system, how many

         11  new students are being initially evaluated and need

         12  placement, and children do move from

         13  school-to-school. And if a child is in a general

         14  education class in one particular neighborhood,

         15  moves and goes to a new neighborhood, and now the

         16  evaluation has caught up with them, and that child

         17  now needs to be placed in a special education

         18  program in his new school, that school did not

         19  expect them.

         20                 The idea that the Department says

         21  well school should do a little bit more in the way

         22  of planning ahead of time. Well, you know, you can't

         23  always plan for the children in this City, children

         24  do move around.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: And is it the
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          2  moving around of children, or is it the delay in

          3  getting their IEP?

          4                 MR. LOGAN: Well, it goes

          5  hand-in-hand. Many times -- I read in the statement

          6  today the testimony that they now said that they're

          7  able to do from the initial to the placement in 60

          8  days. I don't think so.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: That's what

         10  they say.

         11                 MR. LOGAN: Well, I don't think that's

         12  so true. I think it's a lot longer than that.

         13                 And I think that we would wind up not

         14  -- after having the initial placement, the money

         15  did not flow. They claim that they now have it

         16  worked out that once the evaluation is completed and

         17  they have identified the student, that indeed there

         18  would be a place for that child.

         19                 As I said to you, it's kind of early

         20  in the year.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: They list that

         22  there are 79,000 elementary special ed students, and

         23  Linda said that those 79,000 are kids with IEPs. I

         24  want to know, are those kids evenly spread over K

         25  through 5?
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          2                 MR. LOGAN: See, that's impossible, as

          3  Jill mentioned, they control the data, and you have

          4  to rely on their numbers, because there is no way to

          5  be able to ascertain exactly where the students are,

          6  except what they give you. And I don't think that

          7  anywhere in this City is there anything just

          8  balanced out, that there's a certain number of

          9  students here or somewhere else.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: 30 months ago

         11  when I go them to give me this information, the ten

         12  and 11-year-olds were the highest category, which

         13  makes me think that the kids are not getting their

         14  IEPs until very late in their educational process,

         15  and I was wondering if you had any sense of whether

         16  that's improved or not?

         17                 MS. LEVY: I would think over time

         18  that that's absolutely true, that many of our

         19  youngsters do not get picked up.

         20                 The preassessment model, there should

         21  be a preassessment model, a very clear one, and many

         22  years ago we developed one, it's outdated and

         23  probably needs to be updated a great deal. But it

         24  was the idea that if a youngster comes to your

         25  attention, then something is brewing with that
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          2  youngster. Either something we're doing that's not

          3  effectively, you know, managing or meeting the

          4  youngster's needs, or the youngster may have an

          5  issue. It may not be a special education need. It

          6  may be a momentary psychological upset in the family

          7  and it's manifesting itself in some way. So the

          8  whole preassessment issue has gotten kind of lost in

          9  this so we don't pick our youngsters up as quickly

         10  as we need to and provide them with appropriate IEPs

         11  in a timely fashion.

         12                 I think that when you start picking

         13  kids up in the fourth and fifth and sixth grades, to

         14  me that's a signal that something is not working

         15  early on and we have to address that early on.

         16                 But I would say that's probably

         17  consistent with all the years that I've been

         18  involved in special ed.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Council Member

         20  Brewer.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: When you do

         22  your report, one of my questions would be, when the

         23  principals bring special education, and you could

         24  figure out defining that problem to the region, I'm

         25  just curious how long it gets to take to get soft?

                                                            118

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  And kind of the root.

          3                 You know, that would be helpful. I

          4  think that we heard today that, you know, whether

          5  it's Title 1 or not and we're putting in extra

          6  resources, et cetera. So, I just have a request that

          7  your report would help that pipeline, timeline. I

          8  assume that's something that's going to be

          9  considered?

         10                 MS. LEVY: Yes. In fact, we'll map it

         11  out for you. That's a very good question, and we

         12  will focus on that one and try to map out the stages

         13  and steps for you to the best of our ability on

         14  that.

         15                 Yesterday I had a meeting with some

         16  parents, some parents who were in Manhattan. Just a

         17  group of parents who I said, you know, I want to

         18  hear from parents. I didn't ask specifically about

         19  special education, and I assume within the mix of

         20  parents that parents who have children with special

         21  needs, as well as children without, we had the range

         22  in early years all the way up to high school within

         23  that.

         24                 I thought that was most telling.

         25  These are particularly active, articulate, very
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          2  comfortable with language, so no problem at all in

          3  that, and to a person in that group, no one

          4  understood who to go to. To get issues resolved,

          5  they go to the principal, and they feel that many of

          6  the principals, who they've known for many years,

          7  are afraid to, or don't have the information, or

          8  afraid to give them information. And that in many

          9  cases the parent coordinator acts as a block and

         10  doesn't let them get past that level.

         11                 They don't know who to go to. They

         12  don't know that there is, in fact, a community

         13  superintendent with statutory responsibilities. They

         14  don't know that there's a district office.

         15                 I will just paraphrase this. They

         16  call the regional office and they get voicemail, and

         17  nobody ever calls them back. So that went on

         18  constantly yesterday. So imagine a parent, one of

         19  the parents who had an ELL issue, imagine a parent

         20  whose child has special needs, trying to get through

         21  a system where they don't know, and it's not visible

         22  to them and they don't have the map. So, we will try

         23  to provide you with the best that we can with the

         24  map and maybe we can get it out to the public.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I know,
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          2  President Levy, that you have a commitment that

          3  you're trying to get to in Brooklyn. We very much

          4  appreciate your making an appearance here, and we

          5  look forward to the study that you are conducting.

          6  It sounds like that will provide very valuable

          7  information. So thank you very, very much.

          8                 MS. LEVY: Thank you all.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: If we could

         10  now, if I could ask the Sergeant-At-

         11  Arms to bring up some more chairs. We're going to

         12  hear from Linda Scott, Carmen Alvarez, Helen

         13  O'Reilly and Yvonne. I guess Linda Scott and Yvonne

         14  Cook, Carmen Alvarez and Helen O'Reilly.

         15                 Thank you, Ernie. Good to see you.

         16                 MR. LOGAN: Good to see you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: While you're

         18  getting settled, why don't we begin with Ms. Linda

         19  Scott.

         20                 I'm sorry, Carmen. Yes, why don't you

         21  begin.

         22                 MS. ALVAREZ: Hello? Okay. Good

         23  afternoon. My name is Carmen Alvarez. I am Vice

         24  President At Large for the United Federation of

         25  Teachers, Special Education.
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          2                 Thank you for this opportunity to

          3  offer my union's perspective on the Chancellor's

          4  reorganization of special education.

          5                 The Comprehensive Management Review

          6  and Evaluation of Special Education commissioned by

          7  New York City DOE, also known as the Hehir Report,

          8  on September 23rd, 2004, is what I'm using most of

          9  my comments on.

         10                 The overall purpose of the study was

         11  to examine the extent which the New York City DOE

         12  has a management structure in place that is capable

         13  of implementing the fundamental requirements of the

         14  Individuals with Disability Education Act.

         15                 The current management structure was

         16  put into place by the Chancellor's reorganization,

         17  and thus the report discusses the roles,

         18  responsibilities, the various offices, individuals

         19  involved in special education support and oversight

         20  within the context of the Chancellor's

         21  reorganization.

         22                 While the Chancellor seized upon the

         23  author's statement that the reorganization is moving

         24  New York City in the "right direction" in his press

         25  release, the details of his 116-page report suggest
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          2  otherwise, that in fact, a radically different and

          3  fundamentally wrong direction is being taken.

          4                 Viewed as a whole, the report really

          5  doesn't validate the Chancellor's work.

          6                 I am pleased, I am very pleased that

          7  the report was released prior to this hearing. It

          8  echoes many of the things we, as well as parents and

          9  advocates have been saying to the Chancellor and his

         10  managers about the reorganization from the very

         11  beginning.

         12                 Without this report, it is likely

         13  many of the comments we make today would be

         14  ridiculed and dismissed by the Department, as they

         15  have been doing for the past two and a half years,

         16  as isolated incidents not representative of the

         17  overall success of the reforms.

         18                 In preparation for today's hearing,

         19  I'm asking the same questions you are. Did the

         20  Chancellor have the right vision? And did he provide

         21  the leadership needed to get the job done?

         22                 While I refer to the Hehir Report

         23  extensively in my comments, I would be remiss if I

         24  did not comment on the absence of the voice of

         25  parents in this report.
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          2                 At first I was disappointed that the

          3  report did not acknowledge the impact of the

          4  reorganization on parents. As I read the report more

          5  closely, I understood that the parent voice was

          6  absent from the report because the parents had no

          7  voice in the reorganization.

          8                 This is a serious, even fatal flaw,

          9  that deserves considerable attention in your

         10  examination of the status of this Chancellor's

         11  special ed reform.

         12                 The reforms announced in April 2003

         13  focused on four major areas:

         14                 One, improving instruction for

         15  special needs children.

         16                 Two, holding schools and principals

         17  accountable for improvements in special ed.

         18                 Three, providing services incentives

         19  for better school performance.

         20                 Four, streamlining the evaluation

         21  process.

         22                 Did the organization improve

         23  instruction for the students with disability?

         24  According to this report, I would have to say no.

         25                 Here are some of the points, and I'm
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          2  not going to go into all of them because you could

          3  read the testimony.

          4                 According to the Hehir Report, 45

          5  percent of students with disabilities drop out, and

          6  those who remain, only 28 percent receive a Regents

          7  or local diploma. This means that only 15 percent of

          8  students with disabilities in New York City remain

          9  in school and graduate with a credential that

         10  provides them with a meaningful opportunity to

         11  participate in the workforce.

         12                 Who are these students?

         13                 Like the residents of New Orleans who

         14  were left to fend for themselves in the wake of

         15  Hurricane Katrina, they are overwhelmingly the

         16  children of politically disenfranchised,

         17  economically disadvantaged and minority families.

         18                 The facts, the facts suggest the

         19  Department has simply written them off.

         20                 What about collaborative teen

         21  teaching? That was a biggy. It was also mentioned in

         22  the report.

         23                 The Department stubborn refusal to

         24  implement collaborative team teaching in the manner

         25  in which it has proven to be effective is compelling
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          2  evidence that the DOE's road to supporting students

          3  with disabilities is at a dead end.

          4                 When they refused to provide coverage

          5  for teachers and collaborative team teaching classes

          6  during their prep periods, we used the contract to

          7  force the Department to provide the appropriate

          8  services.

          9                 An arbitrator ruled that when a

         10  student's IEP says that the student needs full-time

         11  collaborative team teaching, the schools must

         12  provide the teachers during the prep.

         13                 Rather than cede to the arbitrator's

         14  ruling and properly implement the service, the DOE

         15  went to the court to get the ruling overturned.

         16                 The Department of Ed lost at the

         17  Supreme Court last year, and again don't give the

         18  students the services they deserve.

         19                 It has now been three years. Madam

         20  Chairwoman, I am asking you and the members of this

         21  Committee to direct this Chancellor to follow the

         22  arbitration and the State Supreme Court to implement

         23  collaborative team teaching, which is imbedded

         24  throughout Hehir's report.

         25                 Now, in terms of some of the other
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          2  items, and I'm not going to go into all of them in

          3  depth, hold school principals accountable for

          4  improved performance for students with disabilities.

          5                 What did the report say? The system

          6  has failed to ensure that there was someone in the

          7  school who knew and was responsible for special ed

          8  when they eliminated special ed supervisors.

          9                 The report says it's failed to ensure

         10  that schools at least had a document to refer to,

         11  which is they called an SOPM, which is a Standard

         12  Operating Procedure Manual. It gives the guidelines

         13  to principals to know what they need to do.

         14                 This whole system is made up of brand

         15  new principals who don't have the understanding and

         16  the special ed supervisor that had the information

         17  is no longer available.

         18                 Streamlining the evaluation process

         19  to ensure that the critical decisions concerning

         20  students are made, where instructors and

         21  administrators interact with children on a daily

         22  basis.

         23                 You were talking about the whole

         24  process about the psychologists. IDEA, the federal

         25  law says, it is a multi-disciplinary process. It's
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          2  not supposed to be a one-man show. They have

          3  converted this process into a one-man person,

          4  one-woman person. And that's not the way the intent

          5  of the law was.

          6                 Teachers, providers, parents, are

          7  less involved in the evaluation and IEP development

          8  process when they were before the reform.

          9                 School psychologists are less

         10  available than before to help children with

         11  emotional and behavioral needs, because they are now

         12  case managers, special ed supervisors. They have

         13  three or four roles that have been imploded on them

         14  over this time.

         15                 And if the Chancellor's goal was to

         16  prove that the union, the Jose Pi Plaintiffs and he

         17  boss, that he could dismantle special ed, he could

         18  -- he did accomplish this because the structures

         19  that kept the fabric of supporting students with

         20  disability has been ripped apart.

         21                 When I was here about three years

         22  ago, when you had the first meeting on the reform, I

         23  raised my paper and I said educational malfeasance.

         24  Well, I think the Hehir Report has documented that,

         25  and I think we really should take a very serious
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          2  look at the details of it and hopefully what we did

          3  with our testimony was imbed what Hehir was trying

          4  to say after the Banner statement.

          5                 So, I call with you today to join

          6  with me, with parents and advocates in establishing

          7  an agenda with real special education reform, one

          8  that will rescue the children and families that have

          9  been left to struggle on their own to secure

         10  adequate and appropriate services. One that will

         11  recognize our schools will be judge on how they

         12  address the needs of their most vulnerable families

         13  and students. One that will promote trust and true

         14  partnership between schools and parents. Together we

         15  should demand of the Department, one, implement the

         16  collaborative team teaching as mandated by the

         17  arbitrator and the New York State Supreme Court.

         18                 Two, and you heard it all over today,

         19  this morning, release the benchmarks and the data,

         20  so that we can judge for ourselves the effectiveness

         21  of the Department's special education programs and

         22  its initiative.

         23                 And, finally, I'm asking you and your

         24  colleagues to establish a committee of stakeholders,

         25  including parents, unions, the State Ed Department
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          2  and the DOE to examine data, develop effective

          3  strategies and drive resources to narrow the

          4  performance gap and increase the graduation rate for

          5  students with disabilities.

          6                 Thank you very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you.

          8                 We're now delighted to hear from

          9  Linda Scott and Yvonne Cook. I appreciate your

         10  patience.

         11                 As was mentioned by Carmen, and I

         12  think she's absolutely right, that it was a little

         13  surprising that the report, and I think you've been

         14  here for some of the testimony, the report was

         15  evaluating the system, the investigators seemed to

         16  spend, I don't think it was zero time, but it was

         17  very little time, talking to parents. And my

         18  experience as Chair of the Education Committee, that

         19  the largest number of cases that I get in my office

         20  are special ed parents. I find them to be the model

         21  of parental involvement. They are always fighting

         22  for their kids at every turn, and you have to be

         23  actually a very forceful and cagy parent to get your

         24  child what they're entitled to get, and it requires

         25  enormous efforts. You basically have to quite your
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          2  job and sort of, you know, spend every waking hour

          3  fighting the bureaucracy.

          4                 And, so, it seems very unfortunate

          5  that the report didn't include that perspective,

          6  even though the report did say that they were trying

          7  to do a structural evaluation.

          8                 So, we certainly welcome your

          9  comments. If you want to comment on anything you've

         10  heard this morning, that's fine. Or if you want to

         11  just tell us about what your experiences have been,

         12  we would welcome that.

         13                 Why don't we begin with Linda Scott.

         14                 The light has to be off, for the

         15  microphone to be on. Kind of making it challenging

         16  for all of us.

         17                 MS. SCOTT: Good afternoon. I'm Linda

         18  Scott, and I am a parent of Christopher Michael

         19  Scott, who attends Cavallaro, but which is a bigger

         20  part of the 811K. I have a handout that we would

         21  like the Council members to see, because you will

         22  see why we are here. And thank you for having us,

         23  and thank you for everything that your office has

         24  done on our behalf.

         25                 On May 2nd, we entered an Odyssey.
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          2  The Odyssey happened when Rachel Henderson was

          3  removed. She was removed without warning. The kids

          4  came back to school, the staff came back and they

          5  had no principal. No principal. She was removed

          6  under the guise of one of the Department of Ed's

          7  favorite catch-phrase, "under a pending

          8  investigation."

          9                 So, we questioned. I have selected

         10  the 811K program for Christopher, because Cavallaro

         11  is a part of that program and it's an excellent

         12  school.

         13                 I went to the first PTA meeting. Dr.

         14  Irba was present. And I'm sorry that Superintendent

         15  Farina left because I would really like to ask her

         16  personally, and face-to-face, as my mother would say

         17  from Virginia, why you haven't answered our

         18  questions. Why you have not answered our e-mails.

         19  Why is it okay under Susan Irba's management style

         20  or mismanagement style to send the wrong child to

         21  therapy? I would like to ask that.

         22                 I would like to understand why the

         23  kids at 811K and Haring Street don't have any

         24  textbooks and we're in the middle of October.

         25                 I would like to understand from the
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          2  Department of Education why Joel Klein has ignored

          3  us, for a better term of it.

          4                 I was very, very excited when

          5  Bloomberg came in and said he would be the Education

          6  Mayor. I was very excited at Brooklyn Tech when

          7  Chancellor Klein came and said he was open to

          8  parents. We had done everything except sacrifice my

          9  youngest child and give a pint of blood and Joel

         10  Klein refuses to meet with us.

         11                 811K is indicative of what is wrong

         12  with District 75. It is not parent friendly. It is

         13  not parent friendly. She stood at a meeting and

         14  lied. She has no credibility and no accountability.

         15                 I work right down the street at

         16  Goldman Sachs, I'm accountable to everyone. She was

         17  not accountable. We have her on tape playing with

         18  her cell phone and blackberry. We have begged for a

         19  meeting with the Chancellor. The students are

         20  suffering. We have gotten letters from yourself,

         21  Madam Chairperson, Hillary Clinton, Al Vann and they

         22  still refuse to listen. They have put in charge of

         23  the program at 811K a head of schools. Nowhere on

         24  the Department of Education org chart is there a

         25  head of schools. When we ask what it is, we get, oh,
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          2  he's a person that's worked for the district a long

          3  time.

          4                 Okay, that doesn't answer our

          5  questions. At a PTA meeting it was brought up about

          6  this qualifications. He did not mention educational

          7  qualifications. If you went to college, one of the

          8  first things you're going to say is where you

          9  attended. So, I want to understand from somebody how

         10  this is best practices, and where is it best

         11  practices at?

         12                 I don't have a prepared statement. I

         13  am an angry parent.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I certainly

         15  hear that, and, you know, I think sometimes if more

         16  parents would get angry we would have a better

         17  system.

         18                 So, believe you me, I'm not knocking

         19  it.

         20                 But I think for the purposes of the

         21  public, we need to understand a little bit what are

         22  the educational issues.

         23                 I understand that a principal, and

         24  this is not the first time this has happened, people

         25  get removed and there's no communication and, you

                                                            134

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  know, but I'm trying to understand, can you describe

          3  a little bit how your children's educational needs

          4  are or are not being met by the situation, just so

          5  we have a context for it?

          6                 MS. COOK: Yes. Good morning, Madam

          7  Chairperson and the Council. My name is Yvonne Cook,

          8  I'm the PTA president.

          9                 There are a lot of ways where the

         10  children's education is being impacted. Due to the

         11  removal of the principal, there has been a huge

         12  staff turnover. We have a lot of inexperienced

         13  teachers coming in who have no background with our

         14  children. They're learning as they go along. That's

         15  part of the problem.

         16                 We have an increase of behavioral

         17  incidences because the head of school does not have

         18  an educator's mindset, he has a security mindset,

         19  where he segregates children to a part of the

         20  building. They have to stay there. They can only

         21  move around on that floor, to protect the other

         22  students.

         23                 There's a problem there when you're

         24  segregating kids in your own building. As Linda

         25  Scott said, there are no textbooks. No one found the
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          2  need to order them now until I asked and I spoke to

          3  someone in the Chancellor's Office. There was no

          4  need for textbooks.

          5                 They were going to get materials from

          6  the Internet, and we had tons of books we had last

          7  year with the prior administration, but they

          8  mysteriously disappeared into think air. Books they

          9  could be using right now instead of using copies and

         10  Internet material to teach our children. Is this

         11  where our taxpayer money is going?

         12                 I work very hard, and for my son to

         13  come home with a sheet everyday instead of a

         14  textbook, makes my husband and I very angry, because

         15  he's not getting what he needs.

         16                 I'm not against anyone not getting --

         17  you know, to shirk (phonetic) anyone, but when he

         18  comes home and he says, "I don't want to go to

         19  school, mommy. They don't care about me." What does

         20  that say to me when I put him on that bus every

         21  morning?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I'm the mother

         23  of two children, so I understand. I think

         24  intuitively, you know, your precious bundle, you

         25  send them off and you want to make sure that they're
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          2  safe and that they're learning, and if they're not,

          3  you have a right to complain and be unhappy.

          4                 I think we're just trying to get at

          5  whether it's -- can either of you talk more about

          6  the types of special ed services that children are

          7  supposed to get that they're not getting?

          8                 MS. COOK: Okay.

          9                 Well, in our building we have a

         10  mixture of disabilities. We have children that are

         11  non-ambulatory in wheelchairs. We have children that

         12  are ambulatory and able to walk. They have a series

         13  of needs, emotional, some are autistic, Down

         14  Syndrome. There's a mixture of children in the

         15  building.

         16                 For the most part, there is a

         17  shortage of speech therapists, a shortage of

         18  occupational therapists. No one has any idea when

         19  they're going to come, and the ones that are there

         20  can't exactly tell you the goals there are for your

         21  child. They can't tell you that because they haven't

         22  read the IEP and they don't know. They haven't read

         23  the IEP so they can't tell you. They don't know what

         24  their goal is. Well, how do you work with my child?

         25  Well, I go into the classroom. You go into the
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          2  classroom and do what? Do you assist the teacher

          3  with her lesson? Do you go on a different course? Do

          4  you pull the child to the side? Are you asking

          5  questions about the lesson? How do you do that? They

          6  have no answers for you. And you would assume if

          7  they're in the class, supposedly twice a week, in

          8  some cases mainly more, they would have a goal for

          9  your child, let's teach him how to say his name,

         10  know his address, be able to ask can I go to the

         11  bathroom. If you don't have a goal and expectation

         12  for that child, what does that tell that child?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: This is an

         14  elementary school?

         15                 MS. COOK: No. It is a high school. A

         16  middle school and high school level program. Our

         17  students range from middle school to high school.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: We will

         19  definitely follow-up with your particular situation.

         20  I know my office has been in contact --

         21                 MS. COOK: Yes. Thank you so much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: And we will

         23  continue to assist you. But I also appreciate you

         24  coming forward because there are lots of parents who

         25  can't or don't for whatever reason. And as you've
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          2  heard, we get often a very rosy portrait from the

          3  Department, in terms of what's happening.

          4                 Why don't we hear from Helen

          5  O'Reilly, and then we'll go to questions.

          6                 MS. O'REILLY: Good afternoon, Madam

          7  Chairperson. I am here from Advocates for Children,

          8  primarily in the role as an advocate for special

          9  education teenagers, in District 75, and students

         10  who are 16, 17, 18 that are struggling in school, in

         11  large part due to the failures of the system to meet

         12  their needs.

         13                 AFC is not able to comment in detail

         14  on the report issued by Tom Hehir concerning the

         15  special education system in New York City.

         16                 However, we do fully support the

         17  recommendations and hope that they're implemented as

         18  quickly as possible.

         19                 But instead of discussing the report,

         20  I'm here to talk about an Advocates for Children

         21  report called "Leaving School Empty Handed" which I

         22  have given you guys a copy of.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Can you move

         24  the microphone just a little bit --

         25                 MS. O'REILLY: Lower?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:-- Lower.

          3  Somehow I'm having trouble hearing you.

          4                 MS. O'REILLY: Is it okay now? Closer

          5  like this?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Yes.

          7                 MS. O'REILLY: Okay. So, Advocates for

          8  Children wrote a report about graduation rates in

          9  New York City, and it relates in large part to the

         10  work that Tom Hehir did in talking about outcomes.

         11  And one of the things I'm here today to say is that

         12  it's important that we focus not just on the

         13  services that children are getting, when they are

         14  not getting services, which ones are missing and

         15  which ones are delayed, but what are the outcomes

         16  that we expect for students. How are we preparing

         17  them and equipping students in special education to

         18  exist in the community? And when we don't meet their

         19  needs, what is the result that we're facing with

         20  teenagers who are disaffected, who are disengaged in

         21  school, how do we treat them, how do we react to

         22  them? And in what way is the failure the failure of

         23  the Department of Education?

         24                 So, this report which I've given you

         25  guys a copy of, and which is available on the
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          2  Advocates for Children website, there is a couple of

          3  recommendations that we have come up with. There's

          4  definitely room for dialogue on this issue, but I

          5  wanted to discuss six of them, six main

          6  recommendations.

          7                 The first is that the reason students

          8  with disabilities are not graduating, it's complex.

          9  However, we think that there needs to be a strategic

         10  plan to address the extremely low graduation rates

         11  for students with disabilities in New York City,

         12  that it needs to be a priority, and that there is a

         13  couple of recommendations we have around that.

         14                 First, to convene a panel of experts

         15  to evaluate the reasons why there are poor outcomes.

         16                 To spearhead a working group of

         17  stakeholders to focus on the topic of graduation.

         18                 Indepth research and data analysis to

         19  determine where the process is breaking down so that

         20  solutions can be targeted, and that successes that

         21  are going on in the system can be replicated.

         22                 A study of best practices on finding

         23  models of high school programs that include

         24  transitional services in special education

         25  vocational programs.
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          2                 The second recommendation is about

          3  high school, to prepare high school students with

          4  skills-building summer programs.

          5                 The Department of Education and the

          6  Mayor and the Chancellor are really working to

          7  prevent children from reaching high school without

          8  the skills, without basic skills, reading and math.

          9                 However, we have to recognize that a

         10  lot of students with disabilities are getting to

         11  high school age without adequate skills, many of

         12  them two to three grade levels behind.

         13                 So, one of our recommendations is

         14  that there be an intensive high schools skills

         15  program for seventh, eighth and ninth graders, and

         16  help them prepare to have success in high school,

         17  students that should be diploma bound, that should

         18  be leaving the system with regular high school

         19  diplomas, to help them meet their needs and to bring

         20  their skills up to level. Study skills that are

         21  necessary for high school.

         22                 Intensive remediation, where you're

         23  employing volunteers, teachers, reading and math

         24  specialists, to look at students with disabilities

         25  in the seventh, eighth and ninth grade, and to
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          2  remediate them and to prepare them for high school,

          3  taking their education seriously and giving them the

          4  tools necessary to enter high school equipped to get

          5  a high school diploma, and not to get an IEP

          6  diploma, if that's not what they need.

          7                 If they're reading on a sixth grade

          8  level, help them, remediate them to get up to learn

          9  what it is to be a high school student, so they can

         10  be a serious student and the schools can treat them

         11  that way.

         12                 Our third recommendation is about the

         13  development of GED programs for special education

         14  students.

         15                 The Department of Education has

         16  programs, GED programs for 20,000 students, and New

         17  York City has programs for many more. However, none

         18  of these programs are specifically designed to

         19  provide GED prep for students with disabilities.

         20                 Advocates believes it's a failure to

         21  offer -- it's a violation of federal law not to

         22  provide special education services in GED programs.

         23  These kids are 16, 17, 18 years old, they're going

         24  into GED programs without the skills to pass the

         25  test, with false hope if they're going to pass it,
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          2  and when they fail there's no safetynet for them,

          3  there's no transition services for them.

          4                 So, what we're proposing is that

          5  before a student with a disability is sent to a GED

          6  program, his or her IEP reflect the student's goals

          7  and services to be offered in that GED program,

          8  including transition services. That we don't funnel,

          9  continue to funnel students into GED programs

         10  without the skills to pass it and without transition

         11  services once they don't.

         12                 Fourth, that we change the transfer

         13  and discharge policies for students with

         14  disabilities. Department of Education's policies

         15  governing transfers and discharges of students with

         16  disabilities do not require schools to follow the

         17  special education process of reevaluation, IEP and

         18  placement when students with disabilities drop out

         19  or transfer to GED programs.

         20                 That do not require that students

         21  receive transition services. They cut off their

         22  right to transition services and their right to

         23  vocational education when these students drop out or

         24  decide they're going to go to a GED program.

         25                 If you are not required to assess why
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          2  a student is having problems when they're leaving,

          3  if you're required to reevaluate to create a new

          4  IEP, then you're just abandoning these students and

          5  allowing a system to get away with having failed

          6  them.

          7                 Fifth recommendation is that

          8  transition services and vocational educational

          9  mandates be followed.

         10                 Under federal law, the IDA requires

         11  that all children with disabilities, age 16 and

         12  over, receive transition services.

         13                 However, the Department of Education

         14  takes the position that transitional services are

         15  not a service.

         16                 And if you ever look at a student's

         17  transition page on their IEP, they say things like

         18  student must be gainfully employed, student must get

         19  a job. But there are no services to help them get

         20  that. They don't consider transition services to be

         21  their responsibility. The extent of their

         22  responsibility is to refer that child to VESID. Go

         23  to VESID.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: To refer that

         25  child to what?
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          2                 MS. O'REILLY: To VESID. Vocational

          3  Education Services for Individuals with

          4  Disabilities. So, go to VESID. Now, VESID is not

          5  always incorporated in that IEP meeting, and VESID

          6  doesn't necessarily -- it's underfunded and doesn't

          7  find jobs. It's not a cure-all solution for every

          8  student with a disability. So the Department of

          9  Education, by not considering transition services to

         10  be part of their responsibility, what is then their

         11  responsibility to students with disabilities, who

         12  need to exist in the community. Then we talked about

         13  the failure to provide graduation, successful

         14  graduation outcomes, if you couple no report card,

         15  no diploma with no transition services, you have

         16  scores of children exiting the system with nothing.

         17  Which is, the title of our report is Leaving School

         18  Empty Handed, and how do you expect students, how

         19  are they supposed to value themselves? And the

         20  emphasis, like these parents were talking about on

         21  behavior and security and truancy, which is not

         22  considered to be a reflection of a failure, it's

         23  considered to be the student's problem, they don't

         24  care about school, that's why they don't come.

         25                 We have sixth graders who say they
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          2  don't want to go to school anymore. The parents have

          3  to force them. They send them to schools where

          4  they're getting handouts, but they're not getting

          5  adequate educational services. Failures that

          6  manifest in the system, and you have a 17 year old

          7  with no hope, with no chance at a diploma, with no

          8  vocational training possible for them to get access

          9  to, how are they supposed to view themselves? How is

         10  the system viewing them?

         11                 Our final recommendation relates to

         12  District 75. District 75 schools must be immediately

         13  examined to determine why only 46 students have

         14  graduated from District 75. This is an appallingly

         15  low number and signals that there is a significant

         16  failure to deliver appropriate education to children

         17  who are served through District 75.

         18                 District 75 schools educate more than

         19  22,000 students with disabilities. They should be

         20  required to post the same outcome data as every

         21  other school is required to report, including the

         22  number of students with disabilities who graduate

         23  with regular or IEP diplomas, the numbers that drop

         24  out and the numbers that transfer to GED programs.

         25                 If the Chancellor was serious about
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          2  improving outcomes for children with disabilities,

          3  there cannot continue to be a veil of secrecy

          4  covering the outcomes for students who were educated

          5  in District 75.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I just want to

          8  understand the last few statistics.

          9                 MS. O'REILLY: Sure.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: 46 students

         11  graduated --

         12                 MS. O'REILLY: With regular high

         13  school diplomas, local or Regents.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Well, when you

         15  say "regular," is that Regents?

         16                 MS. O'REILLY: Regents and local

         17  diplomas.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Combined. You

         19  combine them.

         20                 MS. O'REILLY: Yes. Regents and local,

         21  which are what you need to enter --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: The figure

         23  that they gave, 82 students, does that include

         24  District 75?

         25                 MS. O'REILLY: That may include IEP
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          2  diplomas. Elissa and Jill, the Deputy --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: No, that

          4  doesn't include IEP. That's 82 students received a

          5  Regents Diploma, nine with honors, and I'm just

          6  trying to figure out if the 82 is exclusive of

          7  District 75. Does anyone know the answer to that?

          8  Okay, we'll have to ask them.

          9                 And the 46 that graduated from

         10  District 75, that's out of approximately how many?

         11                 MS. O'REILLY: Twenty-two thousand.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Twenty-two

         13  thousand --

         14                 MS. O'REILLY: -- Of students in

         15  District 75.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: But not all of

         17  those are seniors, as it were?

         18                 MS. O'REILLY no. In 2002/2003, the

         19  number of students that exited the system, District

         20  75 with diplomas, local or Regents, Advocates for

         21  children has reported that it's 46 students.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: But out of how

         23  many?

         24                 MS. O'REILLY: I don't know. I don't

         25  know how many exited that year.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: That would be

          3  helpful to know.

          4                 Do you have any idea, I don't know if

          5  you saw the answers to our first set of information

          6  requests that the Department gave. And I don't know

          7  -- they say that 42 students died? Approximately

          8  the same number are dying that are getting diplomas.

          9                 It seems like an extraordinarily high

         10  number. That's per year. Does anyone know what that

         11  could be?

         12                 They say here, "in addition, the PD 5

         13  report," and I don't really know what that is, "The

         14  PD 5 report indicates that there were 4,625 students

         15  who left the DOE program..." I don't know if that

         16  means pushed out or who those kids are and what

         17  happened to them, "... to continue their education

         18  elsewhere." I worry that the DOE doesn't really know

         19  that number. But anyway, they say 42 students died,

         20  742 high school students who were declassified.

         21  Okay, so, --

         22                 MS. O'REILLY: I just have to say,

         23  they don't give us information. This is more

         24  information than I've ever seen. So, that's why we

         25  request it, and I think several of us have, that
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          2  you've been able to get this information, and the

          3  way we can verify it by going back to the schools

          4  and sources and the parents is to come together and

          5  address it.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I am deeply

          7  concerned if 42 special ed students dying per year

          8  --

          9                 MS. O'REILLY: The first time I ever

         10  saw that.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: And it doesn't

         12  seem like anyone is making a huge stink about -- I

         13  mean, maybe it's natural causes, but if so, what

         14  does that mean?

         15                 MS. COOK: Well, I know in our

         16  building, since we have the medically vulnerable

         17  kids, we've had two cases where children have passed

         18  away due to their illness or disability. That's just

         19  two. I can't account for the others.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Maybe that's,

         21  you know, the tragedy of life, but I would like to

         22  know that there's nothing that we could be doing to

         23  prevent that from happening. I was just curious if

         24  anyone had any information on that.

         25                 MS. O'REILLY: No.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Council Member

          3  Jackson, do you have any?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you,

          5  Madam Chair.

          6                 And let me just say I want to thank

          7  you all for coming in and giving testimony.

          8                 I just wish that all the other

          9  members of the Education Committee were here in

         10  order to listen to your testimony, because your

         11  testimony is compelling. It makes me, as a member of

         12  the Education Committee, angry. It says that the

         13  system shows a callous attitude and doesn't care.

         14  That's what it shows, says to me. And I've sat here

         15  and listened to your testimony, and I can understand

         16  your anger as a parent. And as advocates. And I said

         17  to myself, what you've just described is a system

         18  that's failing our students.

         19                 And I know, I'm going to ask you this

         20  question and I'm almost sure I know the answer, rate

         21  it from A to F. What would you rate it? Ms. Scott?

         22                 MS. SCOTT: And F minus.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And F minus.

         24                 MS. SCOTT: Because the system itself,

         25  as it's run right now, is not set up for children to
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          2  succeed. It is not set up for the child to grow up

          3  and be a productive adult. They focus on too much of

          4  what the child can't do. Let's focus on what they

          5  can't do.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Yvonne Cook,

          7  PTA president, rate it.

          8                 MS. COOK: What's lower than F minus?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Lower than an

         10  F, really?

         11                 MS. COOK: Much lower. Because the

         12  system --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: You're that

         14  unhappy with the system?

         15                 MS. COOK: Well, I'll just give for

         16  me.  I've had to fight since my son was three.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Fine. That's

         18  you as an individual.

         19                 Now I'm asking you --

         20                 MS. COOK: Yes, but I also have

         21  parents who are unhappy but they're intimidated to

         22  come and sit before you.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I understand

         24  that. You're the PTA president.

         25                 MS. COOK: That's correct.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Evaluate it

          3  as a PTA president, as far as what they're doing at

          4  your school.

          5                 MS. COOK: F.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.

          7                 Advocates for Children, Helen

          8  O'Reilly. You're representing your group. Can you

          9  rate it in your capacity, or you don't want to do

         10  that?

         11                 MS. O'REILLY: I mean, I don't want to

         12  rate it for Advocates for Children as an

         13  organization, give it a grade. Because we work with

         14  students from early intervention up to coming out 21

         15  year olds --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I'm talking

         17  about --

         18                 MS. O'REILLY: -- But for me

         19  personally --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: -- The

         21  special education system that the students are in

         22  that you're advocating for.

         23                 MS. O'REILLY: I feel comfortable

         24  saying that the students I advocate for, the

         25  teenagers with disabilities, those on whose behalf
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          2  I'm speaking today, the system has failed them. And

          3  that, you know, were you to give them a report card,

          4  it would not be a passing grade.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Are you an

          6  attorney at law?

          7                 MS. O'REILLY: No, I am not an

          8  attorney at law. Which has some advantages when

          9  you're an advocate, because you get to see what it

         10  is to advocate outside of the legal system.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.

         12                 MS. O'REILLY: The difficult work of

         13  trying to convince people and convince students. My

         14  biggest, my hardest job is convincing students, who

         15  are 16 and 17 years old, to return to school and to

         16  give it another chance.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: But you're an

         18  advocate and so you have knowledge and experience

         19  and knowing how to work the bureaucratic system and

         20  try to advocate for the students.

         21                 MS. O'REILLY: I tell parents all the

         22  time, the only difference between you and me is that

         23  I have the direct phone numbers of the people of the

         24  Department of Education.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And you do
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          2  this for a living?

          3                 MS. O'REILLY: I do this for a living.

          4                 What I do is I individualize a group

          5  of people that have been deindividualized.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Ms. Alvarez,

          7  from UFT, if you can -- you're the what, vice

          8  president?

          9                 MS. ALVAREZ: For special education.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Rate it.

         11                 MS. ALVAREZ: I'm going to rate this

         12  Chancellor's reforms on special education.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Fine.

         14                 MS. ALVAREZ: And it is a straight

         15  flat out F on all counts.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Then who, in

         17  your opinion, if anyone you can share with me, who

         18  out there, as parents working in the system with

         19  children with special needs, or as advocates in the

         20  field, give me a group that will rate them an A or a

         21  B.

         22                 Do you have any idea of any group out

         23  there --

         24                 MR. SCOTT: The superintendent.

         25                 MS. ALVAREZ: In terms of the people
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          2  who receive the services --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: No, I'm very

          4  serious. I'm not laughing, I'm very serious about

          5  this.

          6                 MS. SCOTT: But they think they're

          7  doing a wonderful job, because they're unresponsive

          8  and they don't listen to parents. They think we're

          9  all crazy if you ask a question. They think they're

         10  doing a wonderful job.

         11                 MS. ALVAREZ: If you're asking if you

         12  would find a group of parents or students?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Or even an

         14  advocacy group or another organization? Do you know

         15  of any that feels that the reform that they're doing

         16  is real good? That's what I'm asking.

         17                 Madam Chair, if you don't mind,

         18  indulge me for a second. You have people here in the

         19  audience, I assume, I make the assumption that these

         20  people in the audience are either parents or

         21  advocates, because, Madam Chair, this hearing began

         22  at ten and it's almost three hours later. And I do

         23  know that the end of the hearings, as you can see,

         24  there's no Council members here except Eva

         25  Moskowitz, myself, and DOE, even though you have the
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          2  Director of Government Affairs here, but I don't

          3  believe, I don't believe that there are DOE

          4  officials in the special education capacity here.

          5                 If I'm wrong, can somebody from DOE

          6  outside of Government Affairs, because Government

          7  Affairs is here, outside of Government Affairs, I

          8  asked you to raise your hand if you are here.

          9                 So, no one is raising their hand.

         10                 But I do know that they have a

         11  Government Affairs official here that is going to

         12  report it back. I understand that. You know, I do

         13  know that.

         14                 But of the parents that are here, if

         15  you think, if you're a parent or an advocate in the

         16  field, can you raise your hand for me? If you're a

         17  parent or an advocate in the field, anyone out here,

         18  raise your hand, okay. Of the people that raised

         19  your hand, how many do you believe of the reform

         20  reformed? That DOE has done a decent job, a failing

         21  -- a passing mark? Raise your hand if you give them

         22  a passing mark. Okay, that's one.

         23                 And of the people that raised their

         24  hand, how many of you that raised your hand say

         25  they've gotten, they deserve a failing grade? Raise
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          2  your hand. Okay. All right, I appreciate that.

          3                 Let me just say, Madam Chair, from

          4  what I heard, from what I'm hearing, I'm not happy.

          5  And I take your lead on this particular matter

          6  because I do believe that as a Chair, and as someone

          7  that's leading us on this, that you're heading in

          8  the right direction by trying to hold an oversight

          9  hearing in evaluating the reforms. And I'm glad that

         10  the report came out two weeks ago, because as you

         11  said, Ms. Alvarez, and you said it would give us

         12  additional insight into whether or not the reforms

         13  are successful or they're failing. And just based on

         14  what I've heard, and the reports that I have in

         15  front of me, which is not the Hehir Report, but all

         16  of the citations from the Hehir Report indicates

         17  that they're not doing a good job at the reform.

         18                 So, those are my comments.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you very

         20  much, Council Member Jackson.

         21                 I do think that when the report was

         22  first reported on, it seemed like it was only saying

         23  positive things, if you read some of the newspaper

         24  accounts. But if you actually read the 100 pages,

         25  it's one of the more devastating reports I have read
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          2  on the Department of Education.

          3                 I have just one remaining question.

          4  And I don't know if anyone can answer this, but it

          5  seems strange to me that you've got 28 percent of

          6  the special ed kids getting a local diploma, and 82

          7  kids overall getting a Regents diploma, and all that

          8  would mean, it seems to me, is that you'd have to

          9  have the difference between a Regents and a local is

         10  passing four at 65, rather than --

         11                 MS. ALVAREZ: It's not quite 65. It's

         12  still 55, each year they're going to add a different

         13  test to the 65, but there is still a safetynet for

         14  students with disabilities. And they can still take

         15  the RCTs.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I'm trying to

         17  understand, though, it's like they don't have to go

         18  that much in between the local and the Regents

         19  given, frankly, the sort of low standard, and I'm

         20  wondering, is there anything that would explain that

         21  casm between the local and the Regents?

         22                 Is my question clear?

         23                 MS. ALVAREZ: I think maybe you may

         24  want to think about it a little differently in terms

         25  about how the students come into the ninth grade.
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          2  Because the decision gets made fairly early whether

          3  they're going to go local diploma or IEP diploma,

          4  because we have to have a certain amount of grades.

          5                 So when we try to talk to the Board

          6  and try to speak to people from high school, I yet

          7  have to have a meeting when they want special ed,

          8  because they won't talk. And when they open the new

          9  schools, they'll have an English teacher, a French

         10  teacher, and I said, well, do you have a special ed

         11  teacher? Oh, no, we really don't need them. But

         12  there are kids in that program with IEPs.

         13                 So, I would look to how is the system

         14  structuring an environment where kids with

         15  disabilities can enter into a high school

         16  successfully in the ninth grade, and there you could

         17  see on their IEP whether they're headed for a

         18  Regents diploma, a local diploma or an IEP diploma.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: That strikes

         20  me as an excellent point in the sense that the sort

         21  of outcomes are sort of predetermined by the lack of

         22  services. But there's such a casm. In other words,

         23  there's a difference between the number of kids --

         24  this Committee in fact did a report on the fact that

         25  nine out of ten black and Latino students are
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          2  getting the local diploma, and there are real

          3  serious racial and ethnic disparities, but it seems

          4  as if in special ed, you've got only 82 kids in the

          5  whole system getting a Regents diploma; what

          6  accounts for the fact that so many kids can't get

          7  from the local to the Regents?

          8                 MS. O'REILLY: I mean, I believe that

          9  the parents can probably comment best on this, but

         10  my impression is that it's a culture of low

         11  expectations for students in special education, and

         12  what is expected of them is what they produce.

         13  Nobody is prepping them for the Regents exams.

         14                 I mean, the IEP, it's great they're

         15  going to be electronic, but as it is, they're

         16  already just wrote checking off. I mean, I had a

         17  student with a 75 IQ whose IEP said Regents diploma

         18  was his goal. He was 17 and had no credits. I'm

         19  like, am I the only person taking this seriously?

         20  These goals don't meet the student's needs.

         21                 So, I think the IEP itself is just a

         22  piece of paper if the school system isn't taking it

         23  seriously and expectations aren't raised for

         24  students with disabilities.

         25                 MS. ALVAREZ: I just want to add, I
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          2  have a granddaughter who is now in the eighth grade,

          3  and the amount of work that her mother, me, and my

          4  husband take to make sure those special ed services

          5  are following her in the general ed environment is

          6  enormous. We keep a communication book every day,

          7  they put input, is the support there? We have to

          8  check daily to make the support and the

          9  accommodations of the general ed curriculum made

         10  available so she can -- and she's getting it. She's

         11  doing really well, but I have to tell you, I'm Vice

         12  President of Special Ed, I had to struggle. Okay?

         13  So, if I'm struggling, I'm telling you the rest of

         14  the universe is.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Did you want

         16  to add to that, Ms. Scott?

         17                 MS. SCOTT: Yes, I do.

         18                 Basically I wanted to say that there

         19  needs to be a movement of everyone in this room and

         20  above, to make them accountable. Because the

         21  Department of Education, or whatever they're calling

         22  themselves today, is not responsible. Susan Irba is

         23  not responsible. We have to make sure, everyone,

         24  that our kids have a chance at a future. It begins

         25  with us and it ends with us. And that's what has to
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          2  happen. We have to get grassroots. We may have to

          3  get crazy. We have to do it by any means necessary.

          4  But it needs to be done and it doesn't need to be on

          5  Joel Klein's to do list, it doesn't need to be on

          6  Susan Irba's pocketbook shopping list, it needs to

          7  be done right now. We need to start from here,

          8  because our kids have gifts, and they need to be

          9  realized. And 82 kids getting a Regents diploma,

         10  that's ridiculous. What does that say? What does

         11  that -- so, we need to start from here. We need to

         12  start addressing parents. I've already started doing

         13  it in Bedford Stuyvesant. We need to start

         14  addressing parents and letting them know that this

         15  doesn't have to be.

         16                 If they say that all children have a

         17  right to a quality education, we need to question

         18  them and stand over their shoulders, if we have to

         19  with our foot in their neck, and make them

         20  understand that enough is enough and they have to do

         21  what they're supposed to.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Well, no, I

         24  want to thank you for your resoluteness. It's

         25  entirely appropriate, and unfortunately, it's
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          2  entirely necessary. It takes enormous effort to get

          3  the system to listen to what you have to say, even

          4  though in my view your voice is the most important.

          5                 Of course, our teachers are

          6  important, and of course our principals, but that's

          7  all oriented to serving parents and kids.

          8                 And, so, I just want to say once

          9  again how grateful you are that we came forward to

         10  testify and we want to follow up with you to see

         11  what we can do to assess you and your kids, but

         12  we're not here just to put out individual fires,

         13  we're here to deal with the systemic problems that

         14  parents who may not be as resolute as you are and as

         15  tough as you are, so that we make sure to help them

         16  too.

         17                 I thank all of our panelists. We

         18  unfortunately are out of time so I'm going to have

         19  to call this hearing to a conclusion, but I

         20  appreciate very much your input.

         21                 We can do a minute or so, but we have

         22  this room til 1:00. So, I'm happy to go for another

         23  two minutes, but that's all we have. And anyone is

         24  welcome to submit their testimony if they want to.

         25                 Please begin, if you could just state
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          2  your name for the record.

          3                 MR. MORRIS: Jacob Morris, Executive

          4  Director of Society for Equitable Excellence.

          5                 I appreciate you allowing public

          6  comment. Sometimes that's a problem with the

          7  education hearings in the past, so I'm glad you made

          8  the time this time.

          9                 I was very struck with Councilman

         10  Jackson's cutting right to the core, how would you

         11  rate the system? If the system was rated the same

         12  way that the children get rated on their report

         13  cards, and you look at three percent of the children

         14  getting decertified out of 150,000, what would your

         15  daughter or son get if they got three percent on a

         16  test? Well, they would get less than an F minus.

         17                 So, I think that actually to get a

         18  passing grade, the Special Ed system as a system

         19  should decertify, be able to decertify every year 65

         20  percent of the children in special education.

         21                 In other words, the services that the

         22  children get should function to remediate the child

         23  enough so that they could be so-called in a regular

         24  classroom.

         25                 Effective services. Parents get sold
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          2  a bill of goods when they get told put your child in

          3  special education. They'll get extra services and

          4  the extra services will make a difference because

          5  the ratios are different and the quality of the

          6  services have a purpose, have a function. These

          7  services are not effective, they've never been

          8  effective, and your own point, Madam Chairman, your

          9  own point, where does this casm come from? Learning

         10  academic achievement is not valued by our system for

         11  the kids in special ed. And of course, who does it

         12  fall disproportionately upon? It falls

         13  disproportionately upon the lowest income levels of

         14  our society.

         15                 My own son, I got him decertified in

         16  1997. He is now in college. He went into the sixth

         17  grade reading 1.9, so the real truth here is that

         18  this system destroys our children. Very often it may

         19  well be, we could actually like say maybe our

         20  children would be better off without the structure

         21  of this system. I personally, this overuse of the

         22  self-contained classroom, the self-contained

         23  classroom is destructive for children

         24  psychologically. And the framework for that is two

         25  things: One is the pigmalian (phonetic) effect. This
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          2  is from the whole culture, low expectations lead to

          3  lower academic achievement. This tracking, this casm

          4  that you pointed out yourself, this is a disgrace.

          5  It's a disgrace. If parents knew up front when their

          6  child was in the first grade and they said, oh, Jose

          7  needs to get placed in special ed and will help

          8  Jose. So, you know, sign this paper right here. A

          9  bill of rights prior to placement for parents whose

         10  child is on track to get put in special ed really

         11  would make all the difference in the world.

         12                 What alternatives are available for

         13  parents for their children besides this labeling of

         14  their child as defective, a defective child.

         15                 What do the other kids in the school,

         16  when they walk around in the hallways, say to that

         17  child? Their child, my child, your child; what do

         18  they say? They say, hey, you're in the stupid class.

         19  You can't read. That's what they say. That's abuse.

         20  And it's inherent in the very structure of this

         21  system. This system destroys our children.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you.

         23                 MS. SANTANA: Good afternoon. And

         24  thank you, Madam Chair, for allowing me to take up

         25  two minutes at least of your time.
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          2                 My name is Carmen Santana, and I am

          3  going to talk today as an independent advocate, and

          4  of course I am a parent of a child with

          5  disabilities. LD, to be specific.

          6                 For years, my son is going to be 15

          7  years old on February 14th in the coming year. Since

          8  he was two years old I did nothing but go to one

          9  impartial hearing after another, until I finally had

         10  had it to the point of no return.

         11                 I went in, I fought for a non-public

         12  education, and thank God I was granted one and my

         13  son is now attending Savarian High School's Rieken

         14  Ed Center (phonetic), which is a phenomenal program.

         15  And I'd like to see that duplicated across the

         16  board, which I think would probably be impossible.

         17                 I'm going to cut to the chase here. I

         18  have represented many children that advocates for

         19  children turn away. And how do I know this? Because

         20  the first thing I tell parents is, call Advocates

         21  for Children.

         22                 Unfortunately, there are not enough

         23  agencies like Advocates for Children to represent

         24  these children, and many of them end up going

         25  through school, if they do succeed to go through
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          2  school, without the services that they need. Denial

          3  of services. Denial of due process.

          4                 I'm listening here carefully since I

          5  got here early this morning. I have not heard anyone

          6  mention what happens with school suspensions of

          7  children in special education.

          8                 Well, let me give you one example.

          9  One child, cerebral palsy, can barely walk. They're

         10  suspended. I won't give names and I won't give you

         11  more information than that. But that one child is

         12  told you will have to travel to the Bronx with no

         13  transportation and no real placement.

         14                 I'll give you another example. Parent

         15  goes into an impartial, gets a Knickerson letter

         16  (phonetic). Knickersons are good for 30 days. The

         17  parent identifies a school, which is not state

         18  approved, but can provide the child with appropriate

         19  environment. Now the Knickerson isn't honored, the

         20  school isn't considered. She goes into a second

         21  impartial hearing, that hearing officer runs right

         22  through the previous hearing officer's order. Not to

         23  mention that the previous hearing officer orders

         24  that additional funding be made available to the

         25  school for a one-to-one services for the child, and
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          2  we're only talking for a lousy month.

          3                 But regardless of all that that I

          4  said, there are so many other things, so many things

          5  going on in special education that are not even

          6  touched at any of the hearings, or by many of the

          7  advocates, that to cut to the chase, my opinion is,

          8  there are federal laws that are supposed to protect

          9  our children that are violated on a daily basis. I

         10  don't think that this can be investigated on a local

         11  level.

         12                 I sincerely feel that it needs to be

         13  investigated from a congressional level.

         14                 New York City public schools need to

         15  be investigated by a congressional commission for

         16  denial of due process and denial of services. Class

         17  action lawsuits need to come out. That's just two of

         18  my recommendations. There's no other way to do it.

         19  Children are going to continue, if they are age 14,

         20  reevaluated for a transitional IEP, in most cases

         21  they're not even told that their IEP is good through

         22  college. They don't necessarily have to be

         23  transitioned into flipping burgers at Burger King,

         24  and enslaved for the rest of their lives. Some

         25  children can with LD go into, and there are colleges
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          2  that if a parent looks into it, have to accept these

          3  children. The IEPs do not end in high school.

          4                 And as for the diplomas, they're not

          5  even local diplomas, in my opinion, they're

          6  certificates of attendance. That's what they are.

          7  And I hope that someone hears me, because you will

          8  be hearing from me in the future. I really strongly

          9  recommend that Congress puts together a commission

         10  and investigates the New York City public school

         11  system for the violations of federal laws, never

         12  mind the State and local laws. Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you

         14  very, very much, for your thoughtful and obviously

         15  passionate testimony. We do very much appreciate it.

         16  And if anyone else has written comments they'd like

         17  to submit, obviously the Committee will take it.

         18  This won't be the last time we hold a hearing on

         19  special ed. We've held more hearings on special ed

         20  than any other topic other than school safety.

         21                 So, it's near and dear to this

         22  Committee's heart. Thank you very, very much.

         23                 MS. SANTIAGO: Madam Chair, I just

         24  want to say before we leave, that I think that it's

         25  rude and disrespectful and totally discourteous and
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          2  arrogant of any agency testifying to just blow off

          3  the rest of the people that sit here for hours. They

          4  just get up and go. And the City Council also needs

          5  to explore the possibility of making it mandatory

          6  that they sit through the entire hearings.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you

          8  very, very much.

          9                 (Hearing concluded at 1:12 p.m.)
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